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Financial Highlights

Revenue for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 decreased
by 17.6% from HK$3,161,848,000 to HK$2,605,701,000 when
compared with the last financial year.

Gross profit for this financial year decreased from HK$212,139,000
(re-presented) to HK$188,427,000.

Impairment loss recognised on goodwill arising from acquisition of
automobile business in June 2008 amounted to HK$374,508,000
(2014 nil).

Impairment loss recognised on intangible asset in jewellery business
in January 2013 amounted to HK$19,821,000 (2014: nil).

Impairment loss recognised on property, plant and equipment
in watch, jewellery and fine wine business amounted to
HK$43,767,000 (2014: nil).

Realised and unrealised losses on foreign currency forward contracts
of this financial year was HK$9,622,000 as compared with a gain of
HK$161,000 recorded in the last financial year.

Net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 was HK$455,685,000 as compared with net
profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$18,951,000
recorded for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Losses per share attributable to owners of the Company were
HK15.3 cents for this financial year as compared with HK$0.6 cent
earnings per share in the last financial year.

No dividend was declared for this financial year (2014: nil).
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights

Financial Position:

B AR R
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$000
TET FAT
Total Assets BEBE 2,410,514 2,433,612
Total Liabilities BEERE 1,280,169 842,163
Net Assets BEFE 1,130,345 1,591,449
Net Tangible Worth BREEFE 923,546 987,555
Financial Ratios:
Mgt =&
2015 2014
—E—hF —E-mF
Gross profit margin (Re-presented) EME(BEFHZ7)) 7.2% 6.7%
Return on equity HE 75 [ 3 K -41.0% 1.2%
Current ratio MEN L & 1.6 1.9
Gearing ratio EARBELE 101.3% 42.7%
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Chairman’s Statement

Full of uncertainties within the US, China and Europe during the
year under review was certainly a rocky year. Growth in the US was
strengthening gradually while economic performance in Europe was
below expectations. According to the National Bureau of Statistics,
China’s economy grew at its slowest pace in 2014 as compared
with the same for the last 24 years and its GDP growth decreased
to 7.4% from 7.7% in 2013. Government targets aimed for “around
7.5%".
GDP growth at 6.8% due to the sluggish economy.

UBS, a renowned securities firm, forecasts China’s 2015

During this financial year, the Group’s revenue decreased by
17.6%, reaching approximately HK$2,606 million, compared with
approximately HK$3,162 million in the previous financial year.
Gross profit for the financial year decreased by 11.2%, reaching
approximately HK$188.4 million, compared with approximately
HK$212.1 million in the previous financial year. The drop in gross
profit was mainly due to the decrease in the sales of automobiles in
this financial year versus the previous financial year. The automobiles
business was a major income driver, accounting for approximately
94% of our business. Net loss of approximately HK$455.7 million
was recorded, primarily owing to aggregate impairment losses of
approximately HK$438 million, in this financial year compared with a
net profit of approximately HK$18.9 million in the last financial year.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

China’s Luxury Goods & Automobiles Markets

There are quite a few ongoing updates and research reports
available from reputable authorities, investment banks and global
research houses mentioning the slowdown of the China luxury goods
market. According to the “2014 China Luxury Market Study” issued
by Bain & Company on 20 January 2015, as the global luxury market
has been adjusting to a “new normal” of lower sales, but more
sustainable growth over the long-term, Mainland China trails slowly
behind, showing for the first time, a negative trend in 2014: negative
one percent growth at approximately RMB115 billion. According
to Bain & Company, daigou, or overseas personal shoppers who
buy and send luxury goods to customers in China, has grown to an
estimated market value of RMB55-75 billion in 2014, concentrated in
cosmetics, followed by leather goods, watches and jewellery. This is
nearly 50% of the store sales in China. 70% of luxury brands bought
by Chinese are now bought abroad or through daigou agencies.
Nevertheless, if luxury brands in China would change with the
consumer, shed traditional concepts and channels and follow where
their customers lead, they will reap the rewards with more sustained
growth over the long-term.

According to “Hurun Report on Chinese Luxury Consumer Survey
2015” issued by The Hurun Research Institute on 29 January 2015,
the Chinese Government’s crackdown on luxury gifting continues to
have its effect, with luxury gifting by Chinese luxury consumers down
a further 5% last year, taking it to 30% over the past two years.
Travel retail continues to change the dynamics of luxury in China,
with 7 out of 10 luxury goods bought by Chinese now being bought
overseas.
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Chairman’s Statement

Despite the slowdown of the China luxury goods market, China is
still the world’s largest automotive market, the pace of growth has
been relentless. In the first half of 2014, the Chinese market led
by almost 3.7 million compared with American buyers. According
to the statistics published by China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers on 14 January 2015, the production and sales of
automobiles in China reached 23.72 million and 23.49 million units
respectively in 2014, representing an increase of 7.3% and 6.9%
respectively.

Automakers keep their sights on the China market as the number
of premium brands continue to rise. In the last decade, the China
market expanded by nearly five-fold, from 4.3 million vehicles to
19.9 million vehicles. This increase continued whilst the automotive
markets in other countries were experiencing severe declines as
forecasted by PwC’s Automotive Practice, which is a team of
automotive industry specialists dedicated to ongoing analysis of
sector trends under an article named “Automakers Hungry For
Chinese Luxury Car Market PwC’s Autofacts” dated 2 June 2014.
Even as the Chinese automotive market grew only marginally in
2011, the luxury segment still grew 54.5%. By the end of 2013,
the luxury segment was still enjoying double-digit growth of 18.4%,
reaching sales of 1.4 million units, second only to the US. Autofacts
therefore forecasts that China is expected to surpass the US in
luxury sales by 2016 and the Chinese automotive market will surpass
the average luxury penetration rate of 10% of mature markets like
the US to reach just over 3 million units by 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement
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mission is to continue our leading roles in the luxury goods marketin B MHAEB 2 Rg ARBEEMAFH 2 H
the PRC in a prudent and, to a certain extent, innovative approach  § #& 1 EEZ R Hi5T R8T -
so as to generate profitable returns to our shareholders in the future. KR KK AR R R LEE 3R -

Tong Kai Lap *E
Chairman B
Hong Kong, 26 June 2015 B ZTE—ARAFAHZT+<H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Automobile Dealerships

During the year under review, revenue of the ultra-luxury automobile
distributorships of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce recorded
an approximate 19% decrease to approximately HK$2,309
million, as compared with approximately HK$2,849 million in the
previous financial year. Of our 3 brands, Bentley, Rolls-Royce and
Lamborghini, all recorded sales drop due to the ongoing anti-
corruption campaign by the Chinese government. Bentley had
performed the best among the Group’s other brands with total sales
of HK$1,321.2 million, representing a mere 4% drop compared with
that of HK$1,375.4 million recorded in the last financial year.

Rolls-Royce recorded a decline in sales during this financial year with
a total of HK$862.1 million, representing a significant decrease of
32% compared with that of HK$1,271.7 million recorded in the last
financial year.

Lamborghini Beijing recorded a 38% drop in sales to HK$125.4
million during this financial year, compared with that of HK$201.9
million recorded in the last financial year.

Gross profit margins of all 3 brands improved while the Group
continued enjoying bonuses from the brands which were deducted
from cost of sales.

Numbers of automobiles sold in this year were 358 units of Bentley,
23 units of Lamborghini and 136 units of Rolls-Royce compared with
329 units of Bentley, 37 units of Lamborghini and 198 units of Rolls-
Royce respectively in the last financial year.

Encouragingly, income from provision of after-sales services
increased during this financial year. Total revenue recorded a 15%
increase during this financial year compared with the last financial
year. Regarding the gross profit margin, we saw a drop from 51%
last year to 40% this year. The decline in gross profit margin was due
to one-off gifts to our customers as part of a promotion campaign in
this financial year and was therefore temporary in nature.
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BEEERWR DT

I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

Watch Dealerships

During the year under review, the performance of our super deluxe
branded watch division recorded sales decline. Richard Mille
dropped 23%, with a total of 64 watches sold in this financial year as
compared with 83 watches sold in the last financial year. Parmigiani,
another brand under our portfolio, recorded a decrease of 44%,
with a total of 125 watches sold in this financial year as compared
with 222 watches sold in the last financial year. DeWitt recorded
increase in unit sales during this financial year with a total of 24
watches sold as compared with 20 watches sold in the last financial
year. DelaCour, after switching to its basic models from Bi-Tourbillon
models, recorded an increase in unit sales with a total of 12 watches
sold in this financial year, as compared with 6 watches sold in the
last financial year.

Buben & Zorweg, a top-notch Austrian manufacturer in Objects of
Time, recorded sales of 21 pieces of high-end products during this
financial year, compared with 20 pieces in the last financial year.

Jewellery Distributorships

Sales of top-tier branded jewellery decreased in term of quantity and
sales amount. A total of 514 pieces were sold during this financial
year, a drop by 33% as compared with the last financial year in
which, 764 pieces of jewellery were sold.

Boucheron recorded a drop in sales during this financial year
at HK$27.93 million, down 35% from HK$42.74 million in the
last financial year. A total of 417 units of Boucheron were sold,
representing a decrease of 44% compared with 748 units in the last
financial year.

Royal Asscher, another high-end brand under our Group, recorded
sales revenue of HK$2.69 million as compared with HK$1.36
million in the last financial year. 85 pieces of jewellery were sold as
compared with 16 pieces sold in the last financial year, attributable
to sales of more affordable items during this financial year.
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BERE R DT

Management Discussion and Analysis

Fine Wines Dealerships

Total sales of our fine wine division increased by 40% to HK$10.76
million. However, sales of top fine wines dropped by 37%
from approximately HK$1.07 million in the last financial year to
approximately HK$0.67 million in this financial year.

Nevertheless, sales of the Group’s private label wine — “Ex-
Chateaux” (32t E € ) — launched in collaboration with our partner
negociants from Bordeaux, increased 52% during this financial year
to HK$10.09 million as compared with that of the last financial year
due to the bulk sales of the same in this financial year. We are also
glad to report that during this financial year, we managed to open 3
online stores and established one retailer for “Ex-Chateaux”.

Furthermore, the Group continued to provide management services
in the sales and marketing of Moutai Jackie Chan Liquor (% & A&
JB) in the PRC, a management fee of HK$2.49 million was received
during this financial year.

Other Dealerships

For Bang & Olufsen, the Group was appointed as a non-exclusive
retailer and distributor of its branded audio and visual consumer
electronics products in the PRC in January 2013. The brand had a
satisfactory performance during this financial year, recording sales
of 8,613 pieces of B&O PLAY, representing an increase of 39% as
compared with 6,181 pieces in the last financial year. Currently, there
are 37 POS and 2 online stores under operations and we intend to
open 8 additional POS before the end of 2015.

The Group was appointed as a non-exclusive dealer of Corneliani,
an ltalian luxury menswear brand, in the PRC and Macau on 28
November 2014. The brand had a satisfactory performance during
this financial year, recording sales of 217 pieces of high-end clothing
articles and menswear products. The Group is currently operating 2
stores and we intend to open 4 additional stores before the end of
2015.
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BN D

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 was
approximately HK$2,605.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 17.6% as compared with approximately HK$3,161.8
million recorded in the last year. The decrease was due to the PRC
government’s anti-extravagance policies which adversely impacted
the demand for the Group’s luxury products, particularly in the
fourth quarter of the year under review. The table below sets out the
Group’s revenue for the year indicated:

Bt %5 O jEE
e

HE-_ZT—RAF=-ZA=Z+T—HULEEE K&
B 2 W49 52,605,700,00078 T 8 & F 8%
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FY2015 FY2014 Changes
“E-REWMBEE “E-MEVHEE 25
Contribution Contribution
HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 %
Revenue Source 3 KR TER B’ (%) FAET B B (%) FAET %
Sales of automobiles AEHE 2,308,608 88.6% 2,849,038 90.1% (540,430) -19.0%
Income from provision of REEERSE 2B
after-sales service 136,906 5.3% 118,990 3.8% 17,916 15.1%
Sales of branded watches ZIEmGREE 89,073 3.4% 120,285 3.8% (31,212 -25.9%
Sales of branded jewelleries ZIEKEHE 30,746 1.2% 44,104 1.4% (13,358) -30.3%
Sales of fine wines BEHE 10,758 0.3% 7,710 0.2% 3,048 39.5%
Sales of audio equipment SENEHE 28,613 1.1% 21,721 0.7% 6,892 31.7%
Sales of apparels REHE 997 0.1% - 0.0% 997 n/a M@ f
2,605,701 100% 3,161,848 100% (556,147) -17.6%
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin EREER=ER

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
declined by 11% to approximately HK$188 million (Re-presented
2014: HK$212 million). The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in the gross profit from sales of automobiles, watches and
jewelleries by 10%, 22% and 30% respectively.

AEEHE_T—RAEZA=1+—HLEE
ZEMT B11%ZE 49188,000,000/8 7T ( =&
—m&E (EFH25) :212,000,00087C) ° F
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EF D BB A10% » 22% K& 30%F7 2K
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

The gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 increased from 6.7% (re-presented) for the last year to 7.2%.
Such increase was mainly due to an increase in incentive bonuses
from automobile manufacturers which were deducted from our cost
of sales.

Impairment Losses

Impairment losses of approximately HK$374.5 million (2014: nil)
on goodwill in our automobile segment and on intangible asset,
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$63.6 million
(2014: nil) in watch, jewellery and fine wine segments were recorded
in this financial year.

The impairment losses were mainly due to significant changes in
the economic and political environment in the PRC which adversely
affected our automobile, watch, jewellery and fine wine segments in
the fourth quarter of the year under review. It is expected that the
situation will continue in the near future in the luxury goods market
and the economic performance of the dedicated assets will be
worse.

As the recoverable amounts of the assets assessed by an
independent professional valuer were significantly lower than their
carrying value, impairment losses were recognised against the

respective assets.

These impairment losses were non-cash in nature and did not affect
the Group’s cash flow condition.

Other Operating Expenses

The Group recorded other operating expenses of approximately
HK$9.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: nil) which
were mainly attributable to the losses on foreign currency forward
contracts of HK$9,622,000 (2014: gain of HK$161,000). The losses
arose from the depreciation of the Euro and Swiss Franc against
Hong Kong dollars.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

The realised foreign currency forward contracts losses of
approximately HK$5.7 million and the unrealised foreign currency
forward contracts loss was approximately HK$3.9 million. The
unrealised foreign currency forward contracts losses arose from the
unsettled foreign currency forward contracts at the balance sheet
dates. The differences in valuation were then recognised in the
income statement as unrealised gains or losses.

Finance Cost

The finance cost of the Group increased by 34% from HK$35.9
million recorded in the last financial year to HK$48.2 million recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2015. The increase was due to the
increase in finance costs arising from the purchase of automobiles in
the fourth quarter of the year under review.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2015 were approximately
HK$2,410.5 million (2014: HK$2,433.6 million) which were mainly
financed by the owners’ equity and total liabilities of approximately
HK$1,112.6 million (2014: HK$1,573.6 million) and HK$1,280.2
million (2014: HK$842.2 million) respectively.

Cash Flow

The Group’s bank balances and cash as of 31 March 2015 were
approximately HK$63.4 million (2014: HK$340.2 million) which were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi
(“RMB").

The Group’s primary uses of cash are to pay for purchases of
inventories, to repay the Group’s borrowings, to increase the
pledged deposit for the purpose of enhancing the banking facilities
and to fund the Group’s working capital and normal operating costs.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the significant increase in
inventory in the fourth quarter of this financial year.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital for its existing operations
and financial resources for financing future business expansion and
capital expenditures.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 May 2015, the Group’s unaudited bank balance and cash
were approximately HK$50 million.

Borrowings
The Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2015 were approximately

HK$1,145.4 million,
approximately HK$679.5 million as at 31 March 2014. The increase

representing an increase of 68.6% from

was mainly due to the increase in the inventory financing in the fourth
quarter of the year under review.

As at 31 May 2015, the Group’s unaudited borrowings stood at
approximately HK$910 million.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio computed as total borrowings over
the total equity increased to 101.3% as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
42.7%). Excluding the impairment losses effect on total equity in this
year, the Group’s gearing ratio was 73%.

Inventories

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s inventories increased by 59%
from approximately HK$942.1 million as at 31 March 2014 to
HK$1,499.6 million, primarily due to the increase in automobile
inventories which comprised approximately 71% of the inventories
of the Group. The Group struck a bargain deal with an automobile
supplier for a bulk purchase which enabled the Group to enjoy a
more favourable unit purchase price with a view to generating a
better yield in the future.

The Group’s average inventory turnover days increase from 112 days
in the year ended 31 March 2014 to 184 days in the year ended 31
March 2015, primarily due to the increase in automobile inventory in
the fourth quarter of the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure To Foreign Exchange Risk

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB
whilst the cost of sales are mainly denominated in Euro (“EUR”),
Swiss Franc (“CHF”), HK$, and RMB.

For this year, the Group was mainly exposed to foreign currency
exchange risk of EUR and CHF and the management monitored
the foreign currency exchange risk with advice obtained from the
Group’s major bankers.

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts primarily
for hedging its purchases that were mainly denominated in EUR.
At 31 March 2015, the Group recognised derivative financial
instruments of foreign currency forward contracts with a fair value of
approximately HK$3.9 million liabilities (2014: nil).

Contingent Liabilities And Capital Commitment

The Group did not have any significant capital commitment as at
31 March 2015 (2014: HK$0.2 million) in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment. The board of Directors of the
Company considered that the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2015.

Charges On Assets

As at 31 March 2015, pledged deposits and inventories of the Group
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately HK$230.5 million
(2014: HK$87.8 million) and approximately HK$793.9 million (2014
HK$380.6 million) respectively were pledged to secure general
banking facilities and other facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 May 2015, the Group’s unaudited pledged deposits were
approximately HK$190 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 477 (2014: 488) employees.
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged to profit or
loss amounted to approximately HK$51.3 million for the year (2014:
HK$51.8 million).

The Group provided benefits, which included basic salary,
commission, discretionary bonus, medical insurance and retirement
funds, to employees to sustain competitiveness of the Group. The
package was reviewed on an annual basis based on the Group’s
performance and employees’ performance appraisal. The Group also
provided training to the employees for their future advancement.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

As mentioned in our previous interim report for 30 September
2014, the PRC government has implemented three automobile
policies including discontinuation of car distributorship and
dealership registrations by brands, parallel import and average
fuel consumption of passenger cars of automobile enterprises
targeted at 6.9 liters per 100 kilometers in 2015. According to an
announcement by the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce
dated 10 February 2015, the pilot plan in the Shanghai Free Trade
Zone approved 17 companies to sell cars under parallel import.
Shanghai is the first city in China where auto dealers are authorised
for parallel-import from overseas markets. It is expected that if the
pilot program proves successful in Shanghai, it will probably be
expanded to the other three FTZs in Tianjin, Fujian and Guangdong
for experiments in a larger scope, and to subsequently the whole
country, according to an article named “Cut-price parallel-imported
vehicles could curb hefty price” appeared in Chinadaily.com.cn on
16 February 2015. Besides, Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People’s Republic of China announced on 5
January 2015 a new revised guideline “Fuel consumption limits
for passenger car” and “Fuel consumption evaluation method and
targets for passenger car” to be effective on 1 January 2016, which
set average fuel consumption of passenger cars of automobile
enterprises targeted at 5.0 liters per 100 kilometers in 2020.
Such development is bringing about threats and opportunities to
automobile business in the PRC, including the ultra-luxury segment.
We will continue monitoring closely the impacts on our automobile
business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 21 January 2015, the Group entered into a framework agreement
with Oettinger Davidoff AG (ODAG) for joint development of cigars
and smoker’s accessories retail business in China. Pursuant to the
framework agreement, the Group shall arrange the joint venture
company (“JV Company”), owned as to 50.1% and 49.9% by the
Group and ODAG respectively, to be formed to carry out the retail
business for the import and distribution of ODAG’s cigars and
smoker’s accessories. It was envisaged that the detailed commercial
terms for the JV Company will be discussed and agreed in a
definitive agreement on or before 31 May 2015. After the signing
of the definitive agreement, the Group and ODAG shall contribute
US$1,503,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,723,000) and
US$1,497,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,677,000)
respectively into the share capital of the JV Company. The term of
operation of the JV Company shall be three years commencing from
the date of the definitive agreement. As at the date of this report,
the Company and ODAG are still in the process of negotiating and
finalising the terms of the definitive agreement. The Group and
ODAG entered into an extension agreement to extend the deadline
to 30 June 2015 (or such other date as mutually agreed) for entering
into the definitive agreement as announced by us on 29 May 2015.

Due to the success of our recurring yearly exhibition and pinnacle
forum held in Beijing, “Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury Brands Culture
Expo” (“SR Luxpo”) and “Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury Brands Culture
Pinnacle Forum & Distinguished Exhibition” (“SR Luxfo”), our Group
has achieved the objectives of bridging east and west and fostering
cultural exchange. Hence, we would like to spend some time to
review and evaluate both events as well as how to further interact
with those networks and work on the business opportunities. The
Group will not organise SR Luxpo in 2015 and hopes to reserve our
manpower for the upcoming SR Luxfo in 2016.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

Looking ahead, given the present challenges, we are confident
and still committed to continue our leading roles in the luxury
goods market in the PRC with our mission in expanding the non-
auto businesses to diversify our product portfolio. Meanwhile, the
Group targets destocking of our non-auto inventory by organizing
more marketing events to promote the sales, improving the
financial positions of the Group by reducing the borrowings and/
or strengthening the cashflow position and we will adopt a prudent
and, to a certain extent, innovative approach in pursuing our future
luxury business development. The Group is eyeing joint ventures
of non-auto businesses with capable partners to leverage on their
resources, expertise and experience. Our strategy is to put more
efforts to develop and expand the non-auto businesses so as to
bring profitable returns to our shareholders in future.
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Report of the Directors

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in distributorships of luxury goods. The
operations are mainly based in Hong Kong, Mainland China (the
“PRC”) and Malaysia. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: nil), while no interim dividend
(2014: nil) had been distributed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a general meeting of the
Company held on 20 August 2012.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s business. Eligible participants of the
Scheme include any director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive director), any employee, or any
consultant, advisor, customer and business associates.

There was no outstanding share to be issued under the Scheme as
at 31 March 2015 (2014: 4,560,000 shares).

TEXK

AATA—MBREERATAWBARE
BRES FEARANE ((FE))REF
EEHFEGRREEY EBHBAA
EEEHHERRGBHERN O -

iR E

EETEAREBE_T—AF=A=+—
BLEFEZRBBRE (ZF—WEFE &) 7
BERFADKPHERE (ZT—HF:£) -

BRETE

AR FERERTE) ([ HIREBAR
AR ——FNAZTHRITZRERE
LB EBIRBERRNA

ENNCIE SV R RPN CIES RN SEIE Sl 08
FLEEBZABER2BEREEH RO -
ZETE 2 R ER2REREEMNES (BEH
T FATRBILFENTES) TAEE
HEMBAAN BH BEPREBBHEA-

R-ZE—RE=A=+—8 HEREZ:T
EETFRITMARITZRG (ZE—UF:
4,560,000/ f& 17 ) ©

22

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #&% £ @5 R A 5] ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F 3k




EXEEWE

Report of the Directors

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 51.1% and 96.7% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top five
customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 67 and 68.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 74 and note 34 to the financial
statements respectively.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$24,410,000 (2014: HK$12,186,000) in surplus.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2015 are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 188.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follow:

Executive directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Gao Yu
Mr. Qi Jian Wei
Mr. Zhang Si Jian

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

In accordance with bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any director appointed during the year will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and are eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is
for the period of two years and renewable for one year up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Tong Kai Lap, Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong and Mr. Lee Thomas Kang
Bor will retire by rotation and, being eligible, for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENTS

Brief biographical details of directors and managements are set out
in pages 59 to 64.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 40 and elsewhere in the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

REARR ZABARNESTNNGZRE &
NEEAZKLI=F - RRBERBFRE L@

BEER UNEERABEEET

BREERRBFRGLEERETZESEM
BEANQNASIEMBRRLAEE AR
—FARMEE CREMERN TURAELEZ
RIGEHL -

BEBYFANTEEZEPRRME  SAIEE
—F HERBEARAZARMAZRE
WESESL-

BEARBZ ARG MBNESTONEZEE B
R EE I REERTBEREEBHRE
EREFEEBRNREERRERFAS FEE
AT

EEMESHBHNH B RRMEIS -
EENEEBEEAEBZERE
EENEEEABZEREMEHNF59564
Eo

BEEREESHCER

W B 75 3R 3% BT 5E40 B2 K th 2B 9 B 3% 58 & ) -
RERFENTMER BMEFERERDT

SEERNEARAILEARARRESENE
TERAEEEREANGCEEZAN -

26

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #&% £ @5 R A 5] ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F 3k




EXEEWE

Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be (i) notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he or she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (i) as recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

Long position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company

Name of director Capacity

EEnR 514

Mr. Tong Kai Lap

(Note 1)
BRI E ERETEIZA (KIFE1)
Beneficial owner
BEREAA
Subtotal INEF
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Beneficial owner
BT kE ERERAA
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner
ERREEE EREAA
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong Beneficial owner
MBS EE EREAA
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor Beneficial owner
FHRRTE EREAA

Founder of discretionary trust

EERARAIREEEEE
Rt HERORES 2SR

RZZE—RF=ZA=+—H B8EBFEEAK
RARBITBRABRARE REMBEE®E (&
ERBSFRBERN(TESRAE KAL)
EXVER) 2 HEARO REFPHER ()R
BEE LSS EXVEETRESH EAM
SRR REBRERSHIERAT ([HR
Fl)zEZREE (BEBEESRBEK
PIBRBIGE X B EIFRIERE 2w A&
B R(NEARAIREEF RS &5 5352
BATEFEZELMAREz ERE AR
(i) IR R R AT A LR A ([ ERAI])
M+ A8 LM BT AESETEER SN
BRESFRIERITAE AR F R AT 2
MORBIAT

REQBRG HEROREZZHA

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held interest
BE RN
BB &R [Elaed
(Note 2)

(Mt5E2)

10,274,400 0.34%
9,760,000 0.33%
20,034,400 0.67%
10,640,000 0.36%
1,000,000 0.03%
4,000 0.0001%
1,256,000 0.04%
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Notes: B E

(1)  These 10,274,400 shares were held by Rapid Alert International (1)  #%10,274,4000 D HBELEBEISZAZE

Limited, a company controlled by a discretionary trust of which (= FLFT#E ) 2 A B1Rapid Alert International
Mr. Tong is the founder. Accordingly, Mr. Tong was deemed to be LimitedF B Bt - B EWRE AR UHER
interested in these shares. M HEE#EZR-

(2)  The denominator used is 2,979,828,850 shares, being the total number  (2) FTA S £ /42,979,828,8500 M n - AR = Z
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2015. —RAF=ZA=+—HZBBETRH B

SHARE OPTIONS i B e

The Scheme was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed &8I IIREAR IR _ZE——FNA =+
at a general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012. ARITZRRARE LBB . TRRAREREN-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2015, the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the

TERRRADA 2R KEE
Btz e

R-ZZB-—AF=ZA=1+—H BEARAARE
B R ERDIE336IR 2 R EFEZERLM
IR BARREZRHEZESTHRAEIN T
BREEMEARRRRENRARR T K AR
Befn <z B S KRR R

REXBDROREBRG 2R

Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares interest
RN
BRRHE B8 g7 R BB Aotk
(Note 4)
(KzE4)
Substantial shareholders
TERE
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL”)  Beneficial owner 843,440,000 28.30%
BHEERBR AR ([RBHEIER]) ERnfEEA
Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi") Beneficial owner 4,960,000 0.17%
BRI ke ([H%E]) EnEAA
Interest of controlled corporation 843,440,000 28.30%
(Note 1)
EHDEER R (MEE1)
Ms. Zhu Shuang (“Ms. Zhu”) Interest of spouse (Note 1) 848,400,000 28.47%
REEZL ([Rkrt]) fe Bt (MEE1)
Sequoia Capital China Beneficial owner 209,328,000 7.02%
Growth Fund I, L.P.
Sequoia Capital China EmEA A
Growth Fund I, L.P.
Mr. Shen Nanpeng (“Mr. Shen”) Interest of controlled corporation 240,000,000 8.05%
(Note 2)
s e (DEEE]D) EHDEE RS (M52)
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Name of shareholder

BRRESE8

SNP China Enterprises Limited
SNP China Enterprises Limited

SC China Holding Limited (Note 2)
SC China Holding Limited ( fff3£2)

Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited
Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P.
Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund

Management |, L.P.

Hua Lang Limited (“Hua Lang”)
EPRBRAR ([EH])

Mr. Jiang Hairong (“Mr. Jiang”)
LBREE (NIEE])

Ms. Yang Lili (“Ms. Yang”)
SEEXLE ([Hrt])

LC Fund V, L.P.
LC Fund V, L.P.

Notes:

Capacity

51

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 2)
zHEEE R (FEE2)

Interest of controlled corporation
ZHEE R

Investment manager (Note 2)

REZE (FaE2)

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 2)
ZHEE R (HE2)

Beneficial owner

BEamBEAA

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 3)
T EE R (HEE3)

Interest of spouse (Note 3)
BB s (PfIEE3)

Beneficial owner

BEamBEAA

(1)  These 843,440,000 shares were held by SRHL. SRHL is a company (1)
wholly owned by Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi was deemed to be
interested in the shares held by SRHL. Ms. Zhu is the wife of Mr. Qi.
Accordingly, Ms. Zhu was deemed to be interested in the shares held

by SRHL and Mr. Qi.

Number of
shares

RH#E

240,000,000

240,000,000

240,000,000

240,000,000

432,896,000

432,896,000

432,896,000

149,048,000

Approximate
percentage of
interest
RN
Atk

(Note 4)
(Kt7E4)

8.05%

8.05%

8.05%

8.05%

14.53%

14.53%

14.53%

5.00%

%843,440,0008% % 17 £ # A& 2 B4 A - IR 3K
ZRAMBELERERA 2 RA) Bk - 555
ERAR BRI AR A Z B h A
@moREERELEZET At REELW
BARTIRITE I RSB P IS A Z B0 P Bk

SR
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These 240,000,000 shares comprised (i) 209,328,000 shares (7.02%)
held by Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund I, L.P., (i) 4,992,000
shares (0.17%) held by Sequoia Capital China Growth Partners Fund
I, L.P. and (i) 25,680,000 shares (0.86%) held by Sequoia Capital
China GF Principals Fund |, L.P. Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund I,
L.P., Sequoia Capital China Growth Partners Fund |, L.P. and Sequoia
Capital China GF Principals Fund I, L.P. (collectively “SCC Growth
Funds”) are managed by Sequoia Capital China Advisors Limited, a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The SCC Growth Funds’
general partner is Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund Management |,
L.P., whose general partner is SC China Holding Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. SC China Holding Limited is
wholly owned by SNP China Enterprises Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Shen. Mr. Shen disclaims beneficial ownership with
respect to the shares held by the SCC Growth Funds except to the
extent of his pecuniary interest therein because he is not ultimate
owner that owns these shares. Each of SNP China Enterprises Limited,
Sequoia Capital China Advisors Limited, Sequoia Capital China Growth
Fund Management |, L.P. and SC China Holding Limited was deemed
to be interested in the shares held by the SCC Growth Funds.

These 432,896,000 shares were held by Hua Lang. Hua Lang is a
company wholly owned by Mr. Jiang. Accordingly, Mr. Jiang was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Hua Lang. Ms. Yang
is the wife of Mr. Jiang. Accordingly, Ms. Yang was deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Hua Lang and Mr. Jiang.

The denominator used is 2,979,828,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2015.

#%240,000,0000% % 13 € #& (i) Sequoia
Capital China Growth Fund |, L.P3H 2
209,328,000/% % 15 (7.02%) : (i) Sequoia
Capital China Growth Partners Fund |,
L.P.¥%5 5 24,992,0000% f& 13 (0.17%) : K (iii)
i Sequoia Capital China GF Principals Fund
I, L.P.¥ %A 225,680,000/ i {7 (0.86%) °
Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund I, L.P.»
Sequoia Capital China Growth Partners
Fund |, L.P.X&2Sequoia Capital China GF
Principals Fund |, L.P. (%% & [SCCHK &
#% |) Jy# Sequoia Capital China Advisors
Limited (—fHRFAEHETMALZ A F])
EIE - SCCRNRE® 2 EME ¥ ARSequoia
Capital China Growth Fund Management
I, L.P.- M Sequoia Capital China Growth
Fund Management |, LP.Z EX@B&Z A5
SC China Holding Limited ( — IR £ 8
EFMA 2z AA) > SC China Holding
LimitedfEASNP China Enterprises Limited%®
Z¥A  MSNP China Enterprises Limited
R—HEBLEEEZERBE 2 AR -BRILE
FWHFEBSCCREEEMBARD 2 &
BBAN BEEREEZERN 2 ER
AR ERREPZSEFEEBRIN SNP
China Enterprises Limited » Sequoia Capital
China Advisors Limited * Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund Management |, L.P.&
SC China Holding Limited& B #8 &1 SCC
RRESHH/AZRO T EE#EE -

432,896,000/ IR D FRERAIF B - =R A —
MBI AE2ERA 2 AR Bt ITHER
RERERMIFAEZRO T EAREZ HX
TARIGEZET At B IWEAERE
BARISEERMBEREZRND T HEAE -

Fr A 7 & %2,979,828,850% ik 15 + BIR =F
—HF=RA=+—BZEBETROEH-
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees.

BERODIEZ Z2ZH
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the completeness
and accuracy of disclosures of continuing connected transactions
(“CCT") and the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules in
respect of such transactions.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed all CCT as shown on pages 34 to 40 and confirm in this
annual report and accounts that the transactions have been entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and
(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

BYFHITES 2B IUMEASE

ARREKIEBLFRTEFRE LR
RUES ASWMH B AT 2 20 2 FERERE -
ARARAEZEBUFNTEFIBEILA
j:o
HERERS
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

On 26 June 2015, BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company, had
also provided a letter to the board of Directors of the Company,
confirming that:

(a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the board of the Company;

(b) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve provision of goods or services by the
Group;

(@) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(d) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

Showroom Rental Agreement

On 31 December 2010, Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading
Development Limited (“TJXC”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a showroom rental agreement (the
“Showroom Rental Agreement”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, for a term commencing from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2013, in respect of the office rental,
management fees and office expenses in relation to a showroom and
office of a gross floor area of approximately 365 square metres at
Zeng No. 4, No. 162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin,
the PRC and subject to an annual cap of RMB2,640,000.

BFERERS (&)

R-ZE—RENAZ+,B KRQRZEED
AR EERETMERERARNE R
AAREETRE—H G BR:

@ WELIMEBEEMEE BRKEFR
EARRZEZTERERACDREZR
BRERS:

() BEXTMEBEEMEE BRKEFR
ERERHFESEBHELIFFERAE
B2 EEBRRAET (HWREXHH LA
AEBBEHRERHRS)

© BWEXLTMEBEEMEE BRKEFR
ERERHESEENELIFERAE
RERXRHZEBHEET R

d BEXLFTMEBEEMEE BEKEFR
FEERBEZHERERXSCBHARBSE
BER-

EEHEEHS

R-_ZE—ZTF+-_F=+—8 ARFHE
MBRARIKXKEEEREESHIEEBRAA
([REEEBBEAAREEWREFLLEL
VEERERGZ ((REHEERRE]) !
BT ——4F A HEEZZT—=F+=
R=+—B1t  »REMRPBXRETHF
EREBKIC2HFEAF I RERBAE (8
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Showroom Rental Agreement (Continued)

A supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) was
entered into between TJXC and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 for
extension of the duration of the Showroom Rental Agreement from
its original terms of 3 years from 1 January 2011 inclusive to 10
years from 1 January 2011 inclusive.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid
by TJXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,640,000 or approximately
HK3,322,000.

Beijing Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011, Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development
Limited (“SRXTD”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing Leasing
Agreement I”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
for a 10-year term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing
a portion of warehouse for exhibition purpose, of a portion of
warehouse having a gross floor area of approximately 2,150
square metres at portions of Basement Level 1 of Towers A and
B, International Wonderland No.40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun,
Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid
by SRXTD to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,400,000 or approximately
HK$3,020,000.

An agreement was entered into between SRXTD and Sparkle
Roll Retail Net Development Limited (“SRRND”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to which
the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement | was transferred from
SRXTD to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

An amended Beijing Leasing Agreement | was entered into among
SRXTD, SRRND and Mr. Qi under which portions of Basement Level
1 of Tower B, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing Fu Eu Chun,
San Li Tun, Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC were surrendered to
Mr. Qi (with no liability on the part of SRRND and SRXTD) with effect
from 1 July 2013. The lease in respect of the retained portion would
continue under the same terms save for rental reduction on account
of the partial surrender.

BFERERS (&)

REHEEWR (&)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Beijing Leasing Agreement I

On 30 June 2011, Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited
(“BJMH”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement I1”)
with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the Company, for a 10-year
term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing a showroom for
luxury automobiles dealership business, of a portion of showroom
having a gross floor area of approximately 1,135 square metres at
portions of Level 1 of Tower A, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing
Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid by
BJMH to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB11,040,000 or approximately
HK$13,892,000.

An agreement was entered into between BJMH and SRRND,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011
pursuant to which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement Il was
transferred from BJMH to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement llI

On 30 June 2011, Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited (“SROBJ”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing
Leasing Agreement III”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a showroom for distribution of fine wines, watches and
jewelleries, of a portion of showroom having a gross floor area of
approximately 2,148 square metres at portions of Level 1 and 2 of
Tower A, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li
Tun, Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid by
SROBJ to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB13,560,000 or approximately
HK$17,063,000.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Beijing Leasing Agreement lll (Continueq)

An agreement was entered into between SROBJ and SRRND,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011
pursuant to which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement I
was transferred from SROBJ to SRRND, with the same agreement
terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

On 30 June 2011, Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited (“BJDT”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a lease agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement IV”) with Mr. Qi,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, for a 10-year term from
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing an office, of a portion
of office having a gross floor area of approximately 1,280 square
metres at Level 3 of Tower A and portion of Level 7 of Tower B,
International Wonderland No.40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun,
Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid
by BJDT to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB4,560,000 or approximately
HK$5,738,000.

An agreement was entered into between BJDT and SRRND, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to
which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement IV was transferred
from BJDT to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement V

On 26 June 2013, SRRND, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing
Leasing Agreement V") with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2023, for
leasing a showroom for luxury automobiles dealership, of a portion
of showroom having a gross floor area of approximately 1,429.2
square metres at portions of Levels 1 and 2 of Tower B, International
Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Beijing Leasing Agreement V (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid by
SRRND to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB13,200,000 or approximately
HK$16,610,000.

Beijing Leasing Agreement VI

On 26 June 2013, SRRND, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing
Leasing Agreement VI”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2023, for
leasing an office, of a portion of office having a gross floor area of
approximately 840 square metres at portions of Level 3 of Tower B,
International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid by
SRRND to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,360,000 or approximately
HK$4,228,000.

Tianjin Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011,
Limited (“TJHY”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, entered into

Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development

a lease agreement (the “Tianjin Leasing Agreement I”) with Mr. Qi,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, for a 10-year term from
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
automobiles dealership, having a gross floor area of approximately
366.13 square metres at Zeng No. 2 and Zeng No. 3, No. 162
Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC.

for leasing a showroom for luxury

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid
by TJHY to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,000,000 or approximately
HK$3,775,000.

An agreement was entered into between TJHY and SRRND, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to
which the tenant of the Tianjin Leasing Agreement | was transferred
from TJHY to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Tianjin Leasing Agreement Il

On 30 June 2011, TJXC, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement (the “Tianjin Leasing Agreement II”)
with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the Company,
for a 10-year term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing a
showroom for distribution of fine wines, watches and jewelleries, of
a portion of showroom having a gross floor area of approximately
949.80 square metres at Commercial Units No. 2-201 and
No. 2-202, No. 162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin,
the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total rental charge paid
by TUXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,840,000 or approximately
HK$4,832,000.

An agreement was entered into between TJXC and SRRND, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to
which the tenant of the Tianjin Leasing Agreement Il was transferred
from TJXC to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

Management Agreement

On 12 May 2014, SRXTD, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a management agreement (the “Management
Agreement”) with Beijing Sparkle Roll Golden Bond Liquor
Ltd. (“BJSRGB”), an indirect subsidiary of Mr. Qi, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which SRXTD agreed to
provide management services to BJSRGB for a term of two years
and eleven months commencing from 1 May 2014 and up to 31
March 2017.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

As stipulated in the Management Agreement, SRXTD shall be
entitled to receive a management fee from BJSRGB calculated as
follows:

(i) For each financial year where the total revenue of
BJSRGB is RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$251,400,000) or below, management fee receivable by
SRXTD shall be equivalent to 2% of the total revenue generated
in that financial year.

(i)  For each financial year where the total revenue of BJSRGB
is over RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$251,400,000), management fee receivable by SRXTD shall
be equivalent to (a) 2% of the first RMB200,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$251,400,000) of the total revenue
generated in that year; and (b) 3% of the remaining balance of
the total revenue over that initial RMB200,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$251,400,000) referred to in (a) above
generated in that year.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total management fee
receivable by SRXTD amounted to RMB1,990,000 or approximately
HKD2,488,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in
note 40 to the financial statements. In relation to those related party
transactions that also constituted continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, they have compiled with
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
are reported in this annual report in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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Report of the Directors

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 was
audited by BDO Limited (“BDQO”). There has been no change of
auditor in the preceding three years.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held
at 4:30 p.m. on 8 September 2015 (Tuesday) at The Hong Kong
Bankers Club, 43/F, Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, Central, Hong
Kong and a notice of annual general meeting will be published and
despatched in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 7
September 2015 (Monday) to 8 September 2015 (Tuesday) (both
days inclusive) during which period, no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 4
September 2015 (Friday).

On behalf of the Board

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015

RANBERE

RKRARRBE_ZT-—HhF=A=+—HILF
EA—EHEREAZARFHRE -

¥ BLEm
BE_Z-—HAF=A=+—RHIEFEZHB
WEAHBEAUGERREAMEHAARAA]
(IZEEREZ-REE=FYEIMAE
PR BED 2 2 F -

ARBEERFBFAE LERE—
RBBIUGERER/ARE ZZHE-

THR

BRRBAFRE

ARRABERTBTAGETN =S —1F
NANR (287) FENE=+HREES
BB S SR ITABSEEBRIR
0 T SRAT IR O A 15 P B R
HHREE-

TERERRER

RARBR_T—RAFNALR (BHE—)E
—E-AFAANB(EHZ) (BIEEEM
B)EEHRERRELD PETEELRNIE
F-AREEBLEREEERRBFRASIN
eLRE FERMBPXHERBBRE
BATER-_ZE—RFNAEB (EHA)TF
M =+2XERNQABEBERNDBEELS
REEWMERNBKERAR MU ABEER
KiBR1835 & M 0221 o

RREES

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #&3 % @ & fR 2 8] ANNUAL REPORT 2015 %}

4]




TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board”) agrees that corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence. Corporate governance requirements keep changing,
therefore the Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that all practices can be met with legal
and statutory requirements. Throughout the financial year ended
31 March 2015, the Group has adopted the principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has been in compliance with the Code
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities
transactions by the Directors. After having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code during the year and up to the date of this report.

The Company also adopted the Model Code as guidelines for its
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company in respect of their dealings in
securities of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Model Code by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three executive, three non-executive
and three independent non-executive Directors.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Tong Kai Lap (Chairman)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Si Jian
Mr. Gao Yu
Mr. Qi Jian Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The biographical details are set out in the “Biographies of Directors
and Managements” section.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the independent
non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the independent non-executive
Directors have signed the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm their
independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend policy,
significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts and
major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s business
is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each
department. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate. The
Board members have access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group has a clear division of responsibilities for its top
management and separates leadership structure where the role of
Chairman is segregated from that of Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Tong
Kai Lap is the Chairman and is responsible for providing leadership
for the Board, ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established and that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company. Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang is the Chief
Executive Officer and is responsible for the day-to-day business of
the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently six Non-executive Directors of whom three are
independent. Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment for
a term of two years and then renewable for one year. Under the Bye-
laws of the Company, every Director, including the non-executive and
independent Non-executive Directors, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least every three years.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 5 Board
meetings were held in 2014/2015. Individual attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee
meeting during 2014/2015 and the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 September 2014 (“2014 AGM”) is set out below:

ERREHERBR

ExeEHRTeaRIAKEZMBRE
BRI ARBEEKAS - R _F—MOF
S B -AFHBIEREEEEH -N_F
—ME/_ET-HF BREELRESY
2% ERZECeR FHZBEegENE
ZREEERNARAR_T—NFALAR
BRETZERBFAE ([ZF-—HFERR
BERG)ZBRENMT -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/ EBRE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination 2014
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
“E2-IFE
Director ) g ENZES. FHZEES REZEE RREEKE
Executive Director HiTEE
Mr. Tong Kai Lap BRI A 5/5 N/AT i 11 N/AT i F 11
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BT kA 5/5 N/AT i A 1/1 N/AT i A 1/1
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong HNE k& 5/5 N/AT i A N/AT i A N/AT i A 0/
Non-executive Director FHTEF
Mr. Zhang Si Jian RRELAE 5/5 N/AT i N/AT i F N/A i A 11
Mr. Qi Jian Wei ARERE 3/5 N/AT N/AT i N/ATE R 0/1
Mr. Gao Yu BELE 5/5 N/AZ 3 N/AZ i F N/AZ i A 0/1
Independent Non-executive Director BUHNTEE
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo sEREEL
(Chairman of the Auclt Commitice) (BREEELE) 5/5 2/2 11 11 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman of MBS % 4%
the Remuneration Committee) (HHZELSELE) 5/5 2/2 11 11 11
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor FHRRTE
(Chairman of the Nomination (BEZE2EfE)
Committee) 5/5 2/2 11 11 11
INDUCTION, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING  EZEH - #R K

OF DIRECTORS

Every Board member has received a director’'s handbook upon
joining the Group, which lays down the guidelines on conduct for the
Board and Board committee members and other key governance
issues, including but not limited to Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations that they are required to
observe during their service in the Board. The director’s handbook
will be updated from time to time as and when appropriate.
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A formal and tailored induction programme will be arranged for each
new Director, which includes a briefing on the Group’s structure,
businesses and governance practices by the senior management.
To seek continuous improvement, the Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training sessions, particularly on corporate ethics
and integrity matters, risk management, and relevant new laws and
regulations, from time to time.

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant and in compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the
Code, the Company shall arrange and fund suitable training for
Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During
the year under review, the Directors participated in the kinds of
training as follows:

FEMEEFBRRIHR L EREHIEF
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Director Kind of Training

=) EIER

Executive Directors HITEFE

Mr. Tong Kai Lap (Chairman) R AE (E/FE) A B

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BETHRE (FIEEFRTHAEER) A B
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong HNREE (BIE/EFELHEE) A B
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Directors FEHITEE

Mr. Zhang Si Jian RBBREAE A B

Mr. Gao Yu SR EE A, B

Mr. Qi Jian Wei FREEEE A B

Independent Non-executive Directors BN ITESE

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo ZBIRSLA A, B

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong NS A B

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor TR S E A, B

A: Reading materials on legal and regulatory updates

B: Attending training seminar organised by BDO Financial Services
Limited relating to listing rules over corporate governance code and
governance disclosure, and Securities and Futures Commission
enforcement.

A BRZERMEESHERMZED

B: HEBRIMBEEAERARMMERZE
BE TERAHECEEARTAIREARKE
ZETRAURESRPEEBEREZE
BZHEBR -
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination
Committee has recommended and the Board has adopted the
following measurable objectives:

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall be non-
executive Directors or independent non-executive Directors;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(iv) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have China-
related work experience.

The Nomination Committee shall monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and review the progress of its measurable
objectives from time to time. Based on its review, the Nomination
Committee considers that the current Board is well-balanced and
of a diverse mix appropriate for the business development of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and has adopted a written guideline on corporate governance
functions in compliance with the Code.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance functions
are summarised as follows:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
as set out in the Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and monitored the training
of the Directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives, including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders’ interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and officers
by linking their compensation with performance and will measure
it against corporate goals. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/
or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about its proposals
relating to remuneration of Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if considered necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. Its present
members are:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

Executive Director

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in 2014/2015
to review and approve directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration. The directors’ fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2014/2015 are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during 2014/2015:

° Review of the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share option scheme with
recommendations to the Board for approval.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
and comprises three independent non-executive Directors (“INED”),
namely, Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor (chairman of the Nomination and
Committee), Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board member, assessing the independence of INED; and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer.

The Nomination Committee has adopted written nomination
procedures specifying the process and criteria for selection of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The Nomination
Committee shall, based on criteria such as skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations, identify and recommend the proposed
candidate to the Board for approval of appointment.

All Non-executive Directors and INED are appointed for a specific
term of two years and renewable for additional one year, and are
required to retire and eligible for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting in 2014/2015. Below is a
summary of principal work performed by the Nomination Committee
during 2014/2015:

° Recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

° Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Board Committee.

° Assessment and confirmation of the independence of the INED
according to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditor for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is an independent
non-executive Director. Its present members are:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, has
appropriate professional qualification in accounting and extensive
experience in accounting and auditing matters. Senior management
and external auditor shall normally attend the meetings. The Audit
Committee held 2 meetings in 2014/2015 with representatives from
BDO Limited, the external auditor of the Company, for the purpose
of discharging the aforesaid duties.
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Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2014/2015:

° Review of annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014 and interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2014, with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review and approval of the engagement letters of BDO
Limited, the nature and scope of the audit and their reporting
obligations.

° Review of internal controls and risk management systems of
the Group.

° Review reports from BDO Limited to Audit Committee.

° Review of connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2015
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditor is appointed by resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the Directors are authorised to
fix the remunerations for the auditing services.

The fee paid/payable to our auditor for annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2015 amounted to approximately HK$1.29 million
(2014: HK$1.29 million).
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The auditor has performed other non-auditing services during the
year with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$0.31 million
(2014: HK$0.31 million). Non-auditing services include mainly
review of interim financial statements of the Company and review
over continuing connected transactions of the Company. The Audit
Committee has considered based on the policy developed by them
in this regard and made recommendations to the Board for these
non-auditing services conducted by our auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that activities of the Board are
efficient and effective by assisting the chairman to prepare agenda
for meetings and by preparing and disseminating Board papers to
the Directors and board committees in a timely and comprehensive
manner. With respect to the company secretarial function, the
company secretary maintains formal minutes for Board and other
meetings.

The company secretary is also responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and that it has regard to them when
making decisions. The company secretary is also directly responsible
for the Group’s compliance with the continuing obligations of the
Listing Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs, including publication and dissemination of annual reports and
interim reports within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely
dissemination of announcements and information relating to the
Group to the market and ensuring that proper notifications are made
of directors’ dealings in securities of the Group.

The company secretary also advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and inside information and ensures that the standards
and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed and,
where required, reflected in the annual report of the Company.

For the year under review, the company secretary has confirmed that
he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
The biography of the company secretary is set out on page 64 of this
annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS - CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETING

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer question on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held every year within a period of not more than
fifteen (15) months after the holding of the last preceding annual
general meeting.

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
general meeting of the Company and put forward agenda items for
consideration by shareholders. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting.
Shareholders holding an aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Pursuant to rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put
to vote at the annual general meetings will be taken by way of poll.
The chairman of the annual general meetings will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of the
Annual General Meeting.
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After the conclusion of the annual general meetings, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website.

A resolution in respect of certain proposed changes to Bye-laws
of the Company was passed in the 2012 AGM held on 20 August
2012. An updated constitutional document of the Company was
published on 22 August 2012.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS - ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company secretary
whose contact details are as follows:

Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Rooms 2028-36, 20th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2299 9902

Fax: (8562) 2802 8577
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for the assessment and management of risk. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and put in place policies
and procedures. The Company has not appointed an internal auditor.
The internal controls are monitored and reviewed regularly by
appropriate senior management so as to ensure that the categories
of risks are managed effectively.

The executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each business
in the division within the agreed strategies. Business plans and
budgets are prepared annually by the management of individual
businesses and subject to review and approval by the Board. The
Board is overall responsible for monitoring the operations of the
business within the Group. Monitoring activities include the review
and approval of business strategies, budgets, and plans, and the
setting of key business performance targets. When setting budget
and forecast, management identifies, evaluates and reports on the
likelihood and potential financial impact of significant business risks.

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiary operations and the Group’s finance department oversees
the Group’s cash position.

During the year, the Board have reviewed internal control of the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries for the financial year ended
31 March 2015. The review covered all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group. The Board considers that the Group’s
internal control system is effective and the resources, qualifications
and experience of the accounting and financial reporting functions,
are adequate for the period in review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management has
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before it for approval including the updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the issuer generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company’s objectives have been prepared and included in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
sections of this Annual Report.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, on their
reporting responsibilities in respect of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out on pages 65 and 66.

The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

ESUPBHRR2EME

EEANEARERUEARAMBRER AR
RMBHRREEAEER ARG ERR
H-EET A B IR R TIEAR A
BR-FRN BERECRNESSELR DB
TIREHEER FEFSHENBERATFESR
REERIUMBRAMBER  BERABAR
ARE RRAERARZ&ZHFER -

AEBERBRZFAREDN BT AELESLR
BREBEMERBEEMRZHAULEREAR
AEBEZRBERRE LR AFRER

BEREEETwmE DM EHE -

RABZEBMEB L EERSAMEBLBAE
BRAGSAEBGEMBRR BBREMLE
BRE N #65%66H °

EEMARFELTIATBEMERNTHRARA
ZOSRAEHASREREKLERNBRE
REEME 2 EFRM -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #&3% % E & IR 2 8] ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3§

o/




TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective for
the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting policies
adopted by the Group are set out in the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” of the note 3 to the financial statements. The
Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in financial reporting. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 65 to 66 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman & Executive Director
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TONG KAI LAP (Chairman and Chief Strategic Officer)

Aged 55, Mr. Tong graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1982 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.
Since graduation, he worked in various international banks in the
commercial, corporate and investment banking areas. Mr. Tong is the
past president of the Rotary Club of Tsim Sha Tsui, a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a founding member of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr.
Tong joined the Group in August 2002.

Mr. Tong has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 48, Mr. Zheng graduated in the Law Department (Economic
Law Speciality) of Peking University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree
in Law. Mr. Zheng has nearly 15 years’ experience in Beijing in
the areas of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis
management and financial advisory. Mr. Zheng is a Standing Director
of China Automobile Dealers Association and a Director of China
High-Tech Industrialization Association. He is a founding member of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Zheng
joined the Group in October 2006.

Mr. Zheng has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.

ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 47, Mr. Zhao graduated in the Information Technology
Department of Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990
with a Bachelor degree in Engineering. He has over 15 years’
experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of luxury
goods in Beijing. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in September 2008.
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ESKEEEAGZERE

Biographies of Directors and Managements

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO YU

Aged 41, Mr. Gao is currently a Managing Director of the Private
Equity Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, primarily focusing
on private equity investment activities in China. He had also been a
non-executive director of Belle International Holdings Ltd (HK stock
code: 1880) from August 2006 to August 2014 and then has been
re-designated as an independent non-executive director of Belle
International Holdings Limited from 5 August 2014 to present. He
had also been a non-executive director of China Dongxiang (Group)
Co., Ltd. (HK stock code: 3818) (“China Dongxiang”) from July 2007
to May 2013 and then has been re-designated as an independent
non-executive director of China Dongxiang from 24 May 2013 to
present.

Mr. Gao was also a director of Tongkun Group Co., Ltd. (Shanghai
stock code: 601233) until his resignation on 30 March 2015.

Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Mr. Gao worked in
Citigroup’s Investment Banking Division in Asia for about five years.
He also worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s Debt Capital
Markets Group in New York. Mr. Gao graduated from Stanford
University with a Master’s degree in engineering-economic systems
and operations research as well as from Tsinghua University in Beijing
with dual Bachelor’s degrees in engineering and economics. Mr. Gao
joined the Group in September 2010.

Ql JIAN WEI

Aged 60, Mr. Qi has over 15-year experience in the jewellery
business in China including trading management, development of
distribution channels and production operations. He graduated from
machineries profession of Beijing Open University in 1982. He is
the elder brother of Mr. Qi Jian Hong, the sole beneficial owner of
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited. Mr. Qi joined the Group in September
2010.
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ESKEEEAEGZERE

Biographies of Directors and Managements

ZHANG Sl JIAN

Aged 49, Mr. Zhang is currently a director of Calor Capital. He was
a Managing Director of Sequoia Capital China focusing on growth
capital investments for about seven years. Prior to joining Sequoia
Capital China in 2007, he worked with Baring Private Equity Asia in
Hong Kong and Shanghai, and Doughty Hanson in London. Prior
to joining private equity in 2000, he worked for Deutsche Bank
in its Investment Banking division where he advised international
companies in their IPO, block trade, debt and convertible bond
offerings. He has a Bachelor’s Degree of Science from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University and a Master Degree of Science from University of
Minnesota and a Master Degree of Business Administration from The
Wharton School of The University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group in December 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 56, Mr. Choy is the Vice Chairman of National Resources
Securities Limited. He has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University. Mr.
Choy is an independent non-executive director of Chengdu Putian
Telecommunications Cable Company Limited (HK stock code:
1202), Luye Pharma Group Limited (HK stock code: 2186), Zhaojin
Mining Industry Company Limited (HK stock code: 1818), and Orient
Securities International Holdings Limited (HK stock code: 8001).

Mr. Choy had also been an independent non-executive director of
Wison Engineering Services Co., Ltd. (HK stock code: 2236) from
November 2012 to September 2013.

Mr. Choy is also the Vice Chairman of the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited, fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
fellow member of Institute of Financial Accountants, fellow member
of the Institute of Compliance Officers, the Securities Panel
Coordinator of the Hong Kong Mediation Alliance, fellow member
of the Institute of Public Accountants, member of Society of
Registered Financial Planner Limited, member of the HKSAR Election
Committee (financial services subsector), member of Shantou
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee, honorary
president of Shantou Overseas Friendship Association, an honorary
president of Shantou Overseas Exchange Association, an honorary
principal of Chen Po Sum School, committee member of Rotary Club
Kowloon West, member of Cash Market Consultative Panel of the
HKEx Board and a director of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Community Organizations. Mr. Choy joined the Group in October
2007.
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ESKEEEAGZERE

Biographies of Directors and Managements

Mr. Choy has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 61, Mr. Lam holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive director of
Southwest Securities International Securities Limited (formerly known
as Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited) (HK stock code: 812) and
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (HK stock code: 8026). He had
also been an independent non-executive director of Mega Medical
Technology Limited (formerly known as Wing Tai Investment Holdings
Limited) (HK stock code: 876) from September 2004 to June 2014
and then has been re-designated as a non-executive director of
Mega Medical Technology Limited from 20 June 2014 to present. Mr.
Lam is also a non-executive director of Sky Forever Supply Chain
Management Group Limited (HK stock code: 8047).

Mr. Lam was also an independent non-executive director of GCL New
Energy Holdings Limited (formerly known as Same Time Holdings
Limited) (HK stock code: 451) until his resignation on 9 May 2014.

Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently a China-appointed
Attesting Officer, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New Territories,
member of Panel of Adjudicators, Obscene Articles Tribunal, member
of Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel and a Civil Celebrant
of Marriages. Mr. Lam joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Lam has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

LEE THOMAS KANG BOR

Aged 61, Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
and a member of the nomination committee of CIG Yangtze Ports
PLC (HK stock code: 8233).

He was also a non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited (HK stock code: 938) from April 2011 to July 2013.

Mr. Lee is a member of the Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of London with a
bachelor’s and master’'s degrees in laws and was called to the Bar
of the Lincoln’s Inn of United Kingdom. He served as president of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong from 1999 to 2002, president of the
Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association from 2012 to 2014 and
is now its honorary advisor, and he is also vice president of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of Thomas Lee & Partners Limited, Certified Tax Advisers.
Mr. Lee joined the Group in August 2008.

Mr. Lee has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
UPDATE

The Directors’ biographical details update, which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, has been
reflected in the above section.
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ql JIAN HONG

Aged 48, Mr. Qi is the President of the automobile dealership division
and watch distributorship division of the Group. Mr. Qi has over 15
years’ experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of
luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi joined the Group in June 2008. He is
directors of Beijing Shou Ying Tong Shang Trading and Commercial
Limited (formerly known as Beijing Bin Li Group Limited). Mr. Qi is
a Standing Director of China Automobile Dealers Association. He
is also the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

He is the younger brother of Mr. Qi Jian Wei, a non-executive
Director.

Mr. Qi has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of the
SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors —
Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares
of the Company” of this annual report.

LEUNG KWOK NING

Aged 53, Mr. Leung is the Deputy General Manager of the
automobile dealership division of the Group. Mr. Leung has over
27 years of experience in managing the automobile aftersales
service businesses and sales management particularly for Bentley
since 2003. Mr. Leung joined the Group in June 2008 and he is
responsible for managing the sales of Bentley and aftersales service.

LI YAT MING

Aged 35, Mr. Li is the financial controller, company secretary and
authorised representative of the Company and he joined the Group
in July 2009. He has over 10 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and financial management. Prior to joining the Group,
he had served in an international accounting firm. Mr. Li holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
and Hong Kong Investor Relations Association.
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B BT S
Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

E5E - +852 2218 8288
{2H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 187, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2015 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate Number P04743

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_T-—RF=A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FERT T T
(Re-presented)
(EFZ275)
Revenue Wz 8 2,605,701 3,161,848
Cost of sales S5 AR (2,417,274) (2,949,709)
Gross profit EF 188,427 212,139
Other income = ON 9 208,651 180,672
Selling and distribution costs HE RREKA (279,131) (257,646)
Administrative expenses THER (80,299) (81,106)
Other operating expenses HAbsg B A 10 (9,622) =
Impairment loss on goodwill EESNCREY B 20 (374,508) =
Impairment loss on property, VI - e R
plant and equipment REREEE 18 (43,767) =
Impairment loss on intangible assets &2 & & il (E 5 18 21 (19,821) =
Operating (loss)/profit B (FBE) BR 10 (410,070) 54,059
Finance costs A& KA 11 (48,233) (35,933)
(Loss)/profit before income tax R AT B B Al
(B8]), &7 (458,303) 18,126
Income tax expense FriS M2 i 12 (319) (852)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BR) EF (458,622) 17,274
Other comprehensive income, BB EMEEmBA
net of tax
ltem that may be reclassified HEgnEHoEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: *ZIEE:
Exchange differences on translation — # & /& 5 ¥ 7% 81 1%
of financial statements of foreign WK ZIERER
operations (5,545) 17,891
Total comprehensive income AEEZHEBAEEE
for the year (464,167) 35,165
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FerTEBARR (8)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E—FEF —E—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
k=2 FERT T T
(Re-presented)
(EFZ275)
(Loss)/profit for the year THALTEEEREE
attributable to: (E518) %F
Owners of the Company KARHEE A 15 (455,685) 18,951
Non-controlling interests JET A = (2,937) (1,677)
(458,622) 17,274
Total comprehensive income THALEEZE
attributable to: CON L
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE7F =N (461,007) 36,249
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR 4 2 (3,160) (1,084)
(464,167) 35,165
(Losses)/earnings per share EKATEEAELEER
attributable to owners of (E51|]) BF
the Company 17
Basic and diluted EXRREE HK(15.3) cents 1l HK0.6 cent 71l

68
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZZE—RF=HA=+—H Asat 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-HF —
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHBT T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - 2SR R 1 18 151,227 209,813
Goodwill kS 20 206,171 580,679
Other intangible assets Hih & e 21 628 23,215
Rental deposits paid to BE—R2BEEAL
a related party HeEe 22(a) 18,181 18,181
376,207 831,888
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ra 24 1,499,550 942,075
Trade receivables FEUE 5 5KI8 25 136 5,054
Deposits, prepayments and e BHEER
other receivables H th & UL 5/ I8 26 221,324 207,683
Amounts due from related parties JELBZFEJ@/\:tﬁA 22(b) 19,410 18,325
Financial assets at fair value through 2 AR BERIER R
profit or loss TRz & EE 23 - 549
Pledged deposits BRI 27 230,470 87,803
Cash at banks and in hand IRITRFEEE 27 63,417 340,235
2,034,307 1,601,724
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERE 558 28 24,065 28,338
Receipts in advance, accrued TE WG IE JE FFrERAR
charges and other payables Hoth JE T 5K I8 29 100,783 127,863
Derivative financial instruments MESRTHE 30 3,880 =
Provision for taxation 75 T8 B 4,636 4,887
Borrowings B 31 1,145,364 679,496
1,278,728 840,584
Net current assets RBEEFE 755,579 761,140
Total assets less current HEERRBAER
liabilities 1,131,786 1,593,028
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e lBIoEER (8)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

R-ZE—RF=H=+—H Asat 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-AF —mE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAT
Non-current liabilities kRBERB
Other payables H b JE S 5K IB 29 395 340
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIBEE 32 1,046 1,239
1,441 1,579
Net assets EEFE 1,130,345 1,591,449
EQUITY e
Share capital &% 7 33 5,959 5,959
Reserves 1 34.1 1,106,605 1,567,612
Equity attributable to ARATEBANEMLES
owners of the Company 1,112,564 1,673,571
Non-controlling interests FERER 17,781 17,878
Total equity A 1,130,345 1,591,449

Tong Kai Lap
& RS
Director

EF

Zheng Hao Jiang
B % ST
Director

EF

/0
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Statement of Financial Position

R-ZZE—RF=HA=+—H Asat 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-F1EF —E—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
{S=a FHET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries EPERNGIE: Fes 19 - =
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE UL B B A R R 19 841,280 859,255
Deposits e 26 100 100
Pledged deposits BT R 27 3,664 6,588
Cash at banks RITHR® 27 584 1,113
845,628 867,056
Current liabilities REaE
Accrued charges and other payables &=t 2 B & H fib fE [~ 7008 29 1,470 1,391
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES B B & R FIAE 19 10,859 3,368
Borrowings &8 31 - 40,000
Provision for taxation T 78 B 87 =
12,416 44,759
Net current assets REBEEFE 833,212 822,297
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERABAG 833,212 822,297
Net assets EEFE 833,212 822,297
EQUITY B
Share capital fi& 75 33 5,959 5,959
Reserves G 34.2 827,253 816,338
Total equity S 833,212 822,297
Tong Kai Lap Zheng Hao Jiang
B BREST
Director Director
EFE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_T-—RF=A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—ZE-afF —E-MEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET T T
Cash flows from operating REEBCHRERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrPrEBAT (B18) & F (458,303) 18,126
Adjustments for: KRBT SIE:
Bank interest income RATH B WA 9 (1,637) (1,410)
Gain on disposals of property, ﬁ%%% s &
plant and equipment J 2 W 9 (700) (523)
Amortisation of other intangible Hithmp EE#E
assets 10 2,766 3,190
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERZBIINE
equipment 10 44,556 40,358
Net realised and unrealised losses/ MTEeMIAZEZERK
(gain) on derivative financial RE fﬁfﬁﬁ/
instruments (M z) 58 9,10 9,622 (161)
Interest expenses MERX 11 48,233 35,933
Impairment loss on goodwill EEZRESE 374,508 =
Impairment loss on property, plant Y R REEZ
and equipment BEEE 43,767 =
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & E 2 HEEE 19,821 =
Operating profit before working LEEEFHAIZ
capital changes ae s 82,633 95,513
Decrease/(increase) in financial BEARBERERKIEZ
assets at fair value through SRMEERD (M)
profit or loss 549 (25)
Increase in inventories FE®EM (565,327) (65,940)
Decrease in trade receivables e Z 5 R IE R 4,855 52,450
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, e BHEFER
prepayments and other receivables H {th i W3R8
(), E (16,116) 32,241
Increase in amounts due JE LA 8 5 A - BRI AN
from related parties (1,085) (8,651)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables [ENNE S8 ()~
N (4,093) 13,610
(Decrease)/increase in receipts TAWRIE - EETE A R
in advance, accrued charges and Hoth JE T 5K I8
other payables (W A) /& (25,481) 5,544
Cash (used in)/generated from KX (FTR),/
operations Frigiie (524,065) 124,742
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNBEBNEH - (176)
Other jurisdictions tax paid BT E A AR R IR (524) (288)
Net cash (used in)/generated from ACERFE (),
operating activities e B & FEE (524,589) 124,278

/2
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meHeRER (8)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BHE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET T T
Cash flows from investing RETEZ2EERE

activities
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank 2 R T1E =

deposits ()R (143,486) 9,842
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE HEREE

equipment (33,227) (80,650)
Purchases of other intangible assets ¥ & H th &2 & & - (25,562)
Proceeds from disposals of property, &Y #eEK

plant and equipment HRAEFT1S IR 1,622 9,526
Payment for acquisition of additional U & 7 — WEE AlZ

interest in a subsidiary FEOMNE 2 T 3K 35 - (24,000)
Settlement of derivative financial MTEeRTEGEH T

instruments, net (5,742) -
Interest received ERLEESS 1,637 1,410
Net cash used in investing activities — % & E B AT I3 & F58 (179,196) (109,434)
Cash flows from financing RMETE2EESRE

activities
Capital contribution from — MM B A Al JEIE AR i

non-controlling interests of &

a subsidiary 3,063 -
New borrowings raised MEEE 3,412,383 2,232,173
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (2,944,185) (2,158,709)
Bank interest paid B TERITH B (48,233) (35,933)
Net cash generated from BEFEMERS FHE

financing activities 423,028 37,531
Net (decrease)/increase IE%&*E%%EIE |

in cash and cash equivalents W) R (280,757) 52,375
Cash and cash equivalents FHAzEER

at the beginning of the year ReZEEEE 334,298 273,893
Effect of foreign exchange EXRGH) 2  FHE

rate changes, net (922) 8,030
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEER

at the end of the year R&ZEER 52,619 334,298
Analysis of balances of cashand BE&RHRESZEEH

cash equivalents EAD M
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEIBE 63,417 340,235
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 31 (10,798) (5,937)

52,619 334,298
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“'T\/\HXZIK*E> (?‘E%Eb 43’%
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_ZT—RAF=ZA=Z+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2015

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
EE TN, ] FehEE  REEE
Share
Share Share Capital option Special  Contributed  Exchange Other Statutory Retained
capital premium’ reserve” reserve” reserve’ surplus® reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ profits’ Total

B BROEE  RARR BRERR  HERE  H0BR  JMERR  ABRE  iERE  RERW ait
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TEn Tén Thn Tén Tin TR TR TEL TEL TAL TaL TaL Fin
At 1 April 2013 RZZ-=5mA-A 5959 799,335 3,608 2776 (36,810) 26,068 22,763 98,754 12,470 670,678 1,605,501 40,033 1,646,634
Addltional interest in a subsidiary W -RHEATEN
acquired (Note 35) 1 (H735) = = = = = = - (68,179) - - (68,179) (21,01) (89,250)
Transactions with owners BERAETIRS - - - - - - - (68,179) - - (68,179) (21,071) (89,250)
Proft for the year TEFRA = = - - - - - - - 18951 18951 (1.677) 17,074
Other comprehensive income Hr2EKA
Exchange diferences on translation ~ BEHEF 2
of foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - 17,298 - - - 17,298 593 17,891
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2EUALE - = - - - - 17,98 - - 18,951 36,249 (1,084) 35,165
Forfeiture or lapse of share options BRER ALK - - - (1.467) = 1467 - - - - - - =
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014
5959 799,335 3,508 1,309 (36,810) 21,53 40,061 30,575 12,470 689,629 1,673,571 17,878 1,591,449
Capital contrioution from non-controling  — FIf B2 1R a6
interests of a subsidiary HE - - - - - - - - - - - 3,063 3,063
Trensactions with owners BEEARTIRS - - - - - - - - - - - 3,063 3,063
Loss for the year TEEER = = = = = = = = = (455,685) (455,685) (2,937) (458,622)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA
Exchange differences on translation £ E K2
of foreign operations [3:53] - - - - - - (5,322) - - - (5,322) (223) (5,545)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2EUAEE - - - - - - (6,322) - - 455,685) (461,007) (3,160) (464,167)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREEERA - - - = = = - - 3 (33) - - -
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - 1,309 - 12309 - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-RF=f=1-8 5959 799,335 3,608 - (36,810) 28,844 34,739 30,576 12,503 233,911 1,112,564 17,781 1,130,345
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * hERFRERSERGEUBRABTERAZ
HK$1,106,605,000 (2014: HK$1,567,612,000) in the consolidated oA REE, 106 605,000/ 7T (=T — U4 :
statement of financial position. 1,567,612,000# 7T ) ©

/4 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED &3 %EEHBRAE ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3




B R MY ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_T—RAF=—_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are distributorships of luxury goods. The
Group’s operations are mainly based in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Malaysia.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 26 June
2015.

—REH

BFEEEERAR([ARAL)A—
FRBEREFMKLIZAERAA A
% i 9% = BE #2 4E & Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda - MEFZL XM RBEE -
RRABROEEBBEXZIABR AT
(TBEZPT]) BT e

ARAREMBAR (M AEH])
ZIBEBRIENER TEAMLRE
SROADREEEMREER-

BE_T-HF=A=+—HILFEZ
MBERRN_T—AFNA-t/"EBH
EEgg AT

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B35 @ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

/0




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - First effective on
1 April 2014

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April
2014:

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and

HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The adoption of these new HKFRSs had no material
impact on how the results and financial positions for
the current and prior years have been prepared and
presented.

2. KMBEEBMBHREER

(a)

RAHE RET2EBRBR
HEAA-R-_ZF-NFENA—-AH
REXN

RAFE AEEHEXERATH
BAEGEAR ([EEGFHA
1) BMZ AT ER EET K2
RN R R R R DN E
AEEH _T-—NFMA—HRA
$h 2 FEME M HmAAAR A
AR ZEMB®K

B e ER
E325% 2 1BET
BBMBRE%ER
F10% BB
IS s &R
BI2RREE
S8
EVILA )
(Z2——%)
B (BB 5
LEREZE
2) —RE
F215

HETHEER
ERARE
REARRE

v
i

RMZEFNI BBV HRSER
BAFEMBEFEZEERE
BRAZEWER 2T ALES
REE-

/60
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but (b)
are not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

RHEBHMEHREER &)

BREMEERERZHET KB
ABEBMBREER

51 7] B B2 AN £ [B) B 7% R 3R 4E
IR EIERT BB R E L
AIE BB MR AR MEEARE

by the Group.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 27
HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle?

Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle!

Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?®

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®
Financial Instruments®

Disclosure Initiative®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers*

B R R e

BEANBREEN —T-TFZ

(1&37) —E-—EAH
2 EE g2

BEEARBREEN —T-——F%

(f53T) —E-=FRH
ZEE M

ERMBREEN —T——F%

(f&3T) “Z-NFES
ZEE s

BEGER EENEREHL
F16RREE AR H
EHEERE
b+

BAGFEL BURBHRE L
EoTR 2 BF] R

BRMBRE LRI AS
ERIEIH
(ZE—mF)

B e ER BERTEP
EAL A ]

BEEMBRERN REBR ERGS
F10% - ABR 2 fl5ME R
BRMBRE
AR E1257 R
B ST EL
E285% 2 1BE]

(Z2——%)

ERMBREEL REFPEHNZ MR

£15%
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 -
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that amortisation
based on revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets.
This presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible
asset is expressed as a measure of revenue or revenue
and the consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

RMBRBUBRE

(b)

R (&)

B MM 8 1 RAER 2 H 7] R
AEBMBHREER (&)

! R-T—HFLH—BRERHF
WM FEREER

2 R-T—HFLH—BRERHF
%Zirﬁﬁiﬂ& BANZHE
RHEBAETZR

€ RoE—RFE—HA— Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ
M FEREER

4 R-E—tF—A—HgHERHA
M FEREER

€ RZT—N\F—H—-BRERH
M FEREER

BEEETELEI6HREEBET
ERE38H 2 55T —EEFER
B I EE Tk

BB ERFI6R ZBTE L
BYR - #as MR EIA B A AU
BRERZITAHENE-TES
FHERIFEI8E 2 1EFT 5l A—IRA]
R 2 RaR - Bl as W IR B &
EREC BERE - WBVEE
N matE W BB EEZ
RN B FEE UIARRE - RIZIRER
AT A A o
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if the
objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing
the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general
hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.

2.

RHEBHMEHREER &)

(b)

B MM B i RAERZH ] R
AEBUMBHREER (&)

BEBEUMBHREERFEIN (—F
—mFE) 2@ T A

FREP B MELEANFSRSI AT R
BENBNFTEBZHBRTE - BEH
BEAREMENRBAEEERK
MEMRERBEHTA (EHR
AR UREELERERZE
MERERERERINEAE R
AREEASHNEZEBTA (K
RBeRFEAR)  —RIZEHK
A E - MREBEHRAZEW
BEERKRIRA KRS RIA R
ELRMEE ANAAORSRE
BRARZEBEITERARBENA
Hi2EWRA ([ERAEIAK
fo2EBA L) FHE - BERBARYZT
REEL TR 2B AR
AAEINARMEEBAGTEL
R EEBECIRAT R -FRAHEM
BEREARTADNRAAERE
aRIK(TERAAEREBRERS
RIFTE-

78 B 7% i i 2 R B O5R Bl 3 IR IR
ARERBERIEFEZAMAS
BMEEMAFI BB RBRER
A (MRBA G EAEIR 2B
EEBERA) AR — R+
BFARE  UEEBRPBHERERA
BRI RRE R B2 A B -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B35 @ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

/9




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

2.

RHEBHMBEHREER &)

(b)

B MM 8 1 RAER 2 H 7] R
AEBMBHREER (&)

BEBMBHREERFEIN (—F
—mFE) —2@MTR (%)

FREVBHRELENEIRERERE
ST ERFIRBEHECREEL
R DENMERE ERER
AAERBRERIKZEMAE

BN RZBEZEERRESM
EXz2ArEBEHeBERNEME

EWARER  FRIFBABETEEESL
S IER & 5T 58 BRI E R © tEoN
BREMHERELENLIRREETE
SR ERIERE AR ER S
MEENRTRBEIRE-

BB BHREREREI15% - KE
BEF&EHNZ Wi

% AT 2 B I E B — 2 Wk BERR
R - ZERZZOURASER
RRmRERRIZRRIARZE
BEERRBEMAFER KRS
BAZREBEZTEMARS
TEP - BAWHEHRELERE155
MARA 2 W RS BHEE
BEtERFEI8H (s FE
SR ERIFI1R [REAH ] kA
FARERE -
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: |dentify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for
the first period beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncement and are currently assessing the
impact of other new and amended HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it is preliminarily concluded that the
initial application of these new and amended HKFRSs is
not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNEABUMBHREER 2)

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the preparation of financial statements

The amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in
relation to the presentation and disclosures in financial
statements, including the amendments with reference to
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong, will first apply to the Company
in its financial year ending on 31 March 2016.

The directors consider that there will be no impact on
the Group’s financial position or performance. However,
the amendments to the Listing Rules would have impacts
on the presentation and disclosures in the financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss which are stated at fair values.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1
January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS
3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with the
transition requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the standard.
Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

4.1
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

4.1

4.2
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.3

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
it operates) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the
end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES2:HEME »)

POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of
long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.4

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided

to write off the cost less their estimated residual values

over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line

method, as follows:

Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

Fixtures 5 to 10 years or over the
term of lease, whichever
is shorter

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)

POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of
consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (the “CGUSs”) that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME (2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.5

4.6

4.7

Goodwill (Continued)

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available for
use. The following useful lives are applied:

Trademarks 5to 10 years

Other intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described in note 4.18.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. A
regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of
a financial asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows in relation to the
financial asset expire or are transferred and substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee

contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded

derivative is prohibited.

4.7
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME (2)

POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management
personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

4.7
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)

POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment.

4.7
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME (2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.7

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

4.7

EREE (&)

EHEERE (&)

EREREE  TBREZRRE
R ARERAY R —HKIA L
THEREFZ AT BRI

- BEBABLERWBREE:

- EREHN MREBRERX
R B HARE K

- EBAREBAERERETT
HmM%ER: &

— i TS EERARES
I35 B B Y T A S AR
yerEA(-

ERX—HeREEZBREEN
BREBTZESBEE 2HER
KESREHRAIGTEKEZ A
BER#E REUBREBRERE
AR A R ABERAZ MR
REHEFINEEBRERLBBZ
B 2R 3 3 [ AR AR 3R 2 R

B -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 %@ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

25




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES2:HEME 2)

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FE2:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.7

4.8

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches and
jewelleries included in the inventories are determined
using the first-in, first-out method while the other
inventories with different nature are determined using
the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.

4.7

4.8
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES2:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.9

4.10

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments, are
initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments are accounted for as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accrued charges, amounts due to subsidiaries
and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 4.17).

4.9

4.10

TEEMIA

g

fTESmMITA (URERI&LER
BERMIASH)NIIZITETA
BHBMNPEAAERR AR
ARAREENFHE - WIETER
HhTAZITETAIERRR
ERBRERIKZEREELS
BEBE-2nEEPEE 2 WK
EIEERFARFERRER

RERBEELEERAE

RekRELFEBEABERITRT
BRE FR|R1ITZEHFR A
RRBEAB=EAHIAT Ak
RERAENSHE L REATRHE
EEXEEZEHRARZEHZR
HURE-URSREZHMS -
RekBAeFEREBREARS
REEZRTEX REAKERE
ERZAEKERD -

EMEE

AEBZERABEERRENES
BN E AR ROR R E A
FERHBARREREE -

EAEEKRATIAGNKEXZ —
FECEHRCHMARZ FTEETF
BHEBAZEBRRBEASEBRE
BERAZ ST RRER (RHE
4.17) °

98

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 123 & BAER2 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3§




BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FE2:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

411 ¢ REE (£Z)

4.11 Financial liabilities (Continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

Other financial liabilities

These include trade and other payables, accrued charges
and amounts due to subsidiaries and are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES2:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.12

4.13

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FE2:HEME 2)

POLICIES (continued)
4.13 Leases (Continued)

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(a) Operating lease charges as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature of
the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line
method over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES2:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Leases (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

4.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a

reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of

money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FE2:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.14

4.15

4.16

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable for the sale of goods, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest and dividends, net of returns and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.16

4.17

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Services income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line method
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME (2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those CGUs that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised for a CGU, to which goodwill
has been allocated, is credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal, or
value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

418 FEMEEZRME (&)

WEDEHECRSELEME
RZBEBBRNIT T ABERE
SR - AR RRE R T L)
NZREELTBEUZHBEEHN
B EEERESE T SREER
H AR A 72 B H SR AR
EBE(MAHE) -

BEREBEETERNERPERE
B-ZREMBEE RWEEEELZ
A EEe BB G hRA
M RERBIER ARE - HE
RREERACEITSBEARE
BRBEBRSEREEE K@
TR (HBRITE ) 2B -

R IR Rl 2 R BB E & R
TeRERREER - BIER Ep
HE B2 B U R e 45 B 0 R A
wAE - BT A EREERERRD
ZEE mAeRERERES-

106

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #E# BB AT ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F 3R




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME (2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

419 EERA

(a)

(b)

BIKEF

18 BIR IR R I35 18 7 E 5K
AHEIRY -

AREBERERFIMEREE
ERP RATEARERSZH
REREFCRFIMERBS RN
wAEE ([sREEaTEl) <
EEREHE-—HBRESHE -
HKRERRBEEAFHEZE
2R -

REBEPEAMEE 2
BRARZEERAZMET
BREM s REKSE
Z-WEMBARARP R
RASFEFEHEERAET
BRA—TEBD L ZHKe

ERREBERFARERE
REBmRANER B -
AEBRZEAHEETZE
TRREMNZEER D #

f
N

JERIE S 15 7

BEAEZEZFBRRER
A ZAKER - ARALE
BRBEREHRIEPRM
REMAIZEFRZMGTA
fE1F B -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 %@ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

107




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on
the best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME (2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 419 EERF (&)
(c) Share-based employee compensation (c) URGRERZIESHE
(Continued) (&)
At the time when the share options have exercised, TEERER  BTERER
the amount previously recognised in share option EREERERCSHETERS
reserve is transferred to share premium. After IR0 w18 o P Ew 8 B H1% - i
vesting date, when the vested share options have ERBERER LW HNE
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the WA B R ARITE ABER
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in BhEREERAZESE
share option reserve is transferred to contributed BEGARAG-
surplus.
4.20 Accounting for income taxes 4.20 fIBH T RE
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. PRt B FE 2N BT 10 SR AE B 18 o
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise B HREER,/ RABERHE
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities BB PI ZE sk B3P R A HA sk
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that A SRS HAR B R & B R M &
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They S ZPRETRER - EEEE
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws SBBEDNERFAERT A 1R
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, BEBEYEEREER R R
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes EETE - AHBIBEENX BB
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a BN EETRANERATIE
component of tax expense in profit or loss. Sz —&85H e
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME (2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

()  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except bank interest income, income tax expense,
finance costs, net realised and unrealised gains or
loss on derivative financial instruments and corporate
income and expenses which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets exclude corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include provision for taxation, deferred tax liabilities
and borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.22 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(0)

©

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(@)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

4, TESHHEREUE (&)

4.22 BE AT

AT B HmAMS  HENLTA
T RALTARRREARRE AR

[&IH

(i)

HEBATAL BIZALTH
HZATBEE I 2 KEK
BRASEARRE:

(@ TSIk EREESARE
= ;

by HAEEEEAZE
77+ 8%

© AEEEXEATZA
AT EEEBAS-

EBRRASEHER
—KEZKE (A&H
YNGR =N DNEIE
B /BB X B 15 Lt ] 5 R

&) -

b)) —ERAZ—EEZH
BARARABATF (%
S—EWARBLFZ
£ 8 TP B 2 2 B
BARARABAA) -

© MREBHAR-—£=
At Uk

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 %@ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

113




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE—

T—RAF=ZA=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2015

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FES:HEME 2)
POLICIES (continued)

4.22 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  (Continued)

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

()  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

() A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4.18. This requires an estimate of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the CGUs and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

5.

B 52 = 5t il T I )

At RAESIREEFEREEMBEAER
(BRAERBEAMEHAEBAE IR
RE TR TR AR -

AEBE R AT RER IS H
ZEFHAFTMEERROEEBERE
RER - RA A LB EN T E M R EFE
AHEERABZRESBEIELEKRH
B2t RBREREAMT

(a) BEEMEERE

REBRIRM 4. 18P 2 G FTE
REeFIABEASHRTHAR
B UWRAGHAEEEIEZRE
EXBUsEREE-REELE
iz Bl BREREENE
AETE ZEEAERMG &
BEHEREER  AREAGBE
HREeELEURREEZRS
mE WEERBEIMBERUGE
ZEREREZRE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 %@ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

115




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continuead)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any indication that other non-financial
assets with definite lives may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4.18. In assessing whether there
is any indication that other non-financial assets may
be impaired, the Group considers indications from
both internal and external sources of information such
as evidence of obsolescence or decline in economic
performance of the assets, changes in market conditions,
economic environment and customers’ tastes. These
assessments are subjective and require management’s
judgements and estimations.

Impairment of receivables

The policy for making allowance for impairment of
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer/debtor. If the financial conditions of the
customers/debtors of the Group deteriorate thus resulting
in impairment as to their ability to make payments,
additional allowance for impairment may be required.
If the financial conditions of the customers/debtors of
the Group, on whose account allowance for impairment
has been made, were improved and no impairment of
their ability to make payments were noted, reversal of
allowance for impairment may be required.
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE_T—

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continuead)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventories at
the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance
for impairment of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired
items. The management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the expected
future market conditions and the estimated selling price.
The Group makes allowance for impairment if the net
realisable value is below the carrying amount.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
Significant judgement is required in interpreting the
relevant tax rules and regulations and determining
the amount of the provision for income taxes and the
timing of payment of related taxes. There could have
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Fair value measurement
A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s

financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

5. BRI LR HAE 2

(d)

(e)

(f)

FERE

AEBEEERSHREMREHN
TE WHIBE FHEIERER
BETRELEE EEBEERE
B R R0 K fh R & (E f A

EREZAERFE AEEYT
BEHRFEENEAEBEHBEF
R (B 2 -
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ZEREAELRERALE -RAE
EBmiET 5 TRHRAETTEA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

AE=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHE_T—

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continuead)

(f)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how observable
the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the
‘fair value hierarchy’):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for

identical items (unadjusted);

° Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other

than Level 1 inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures derivative financial instruments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair
value. For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the above items, please refer to
note 41.6.

5. BRI AR AE 2

(f)

DAMBEFE (F)

AEESRNFEREERBEY
AREEBARENATIZ B
EHAEBRBEB - BETAAEME
RER B ABRMERMGBER
M ERzBABNERIEZED
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)
o M= AIBEEERXMEE
BAE TEER
Bl—Z2®AE:
e BBI=: THERBAE
(RVIEIR B 5 &K
&) e

4678 B 5 185 L3 B 7165 LU 598

B AR EHEBREAYEL
R B R E MR B B R B R
5812 02 R A (TR
i

ARBEAABEFENESRTA
REAAERBRRIE 2SR
EE-EMLABAZAAEME
ZEFMER B2 E41.6-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

RE-PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUSLY 6. EFRVEAE2EHR2ER
REPORTED INFORMATION

Cost of sales and other income SHERARH MU A
During the year, the directors have reviewed the nature of the FR EFCEMERERLSTAERZ
Group’s bonuses from suppliers and have decided to change AL ME WEREBE T RMZS
its classification of certain types of such bonuses from other HHAMBAENREEKRR  BEE
income to cost of sales. Management considers that such RAE B EAEEEMH>BEENFER
reclassification provides reliable and more relevant information HATEER  EILAEIRE A R E AR
because it results in more consistency with local industry Az ER o
practice.
For consistency, the cost of sales and other income for the year BRE-BBE_ZT-—NF=AH
ended 31 March 2014 have been re-presented and the impact =+ —HBIEFEZHEERRREMEA
is set out below: EENZEY FEFHINWT:
As previously As
reported Reclassification re-presented
LAl 2], BEHAE TEHLS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FH T T T
Cost of sales 555 R 2,999,582 (49,873) 2,949,709
Other income PN 230,545 (49,873) 180,672
The reclassification has no financial impact to the Group’s EMHEHASE A PR R
consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated R REBReRERRGERAERE
statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of BRI MIM ST E-

changes in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have identified the following reportable
operating segments:

Automobiles and related parts and accessories and provision
of after-sale services — Distribution of branded automobiles,
namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce; provision of
related after-sale services and provision of training services in
respect of knowledge and skill of distributorship of branded
automobiles;

Branded watches — Distribution of branded watches, namely
Richard Mille, DeWitt, Parmigiani, deLaCour and Buben &
Zorweg;

Branded jewelleries — Distribution of branded jewelleries,
namely Boucheron and Royal Asscher;

Fine wines — Distribution of certain brands of fine wines;
Audio equipment — Distribution of audio equipment; and
Apparels — Distribution of menswear apparels and accessories
Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment

transactions are priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar order.

7 ERE R

HOTEZCRRI TR HREEED

NEREEEHREFARERERR
B-REEN MEEERSHHGN A
B REAEESRRBURRHERS
B5ACIE AN A e B BE 2 B A AR A

%} F #% — R ¥ERichard Mille - DeWitt »
Parmigiani - deLaCour & Buben &
Zorweg# H F 8k

%k 8B — ¥ Boucheron X Royal
Asscher® IR E

ZBHE-RKEETRE:
SERE-HREZTERE X
RE-—NREBKMAIH-
HREEmMERGBRAAZERKE
HIHABRN BEEALEIHBLOHRE

B AR 5 T2 E s R UET B KR
SNERA L Z BT EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. 2EER (#)
2015
~E-1f%
Automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
and provision
of after-sale Branded Branded Audio
services watches jewelleries Fine wines equipment Apparels Total
REREEEH
REHAR
REELRE ZBF& ZRHKE #E BERE fR % &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER T T FEL TR TR TR
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMSRE 2 iz 2,445,514 89,073 30,746 10,758 28,613 997 2,605,701
Other income EABA 137,535 14,400 5578 15,281 - - 172,794
Reportable segment revenue TREI B U 2,583,049 103,473 36,324 26,039 28,613 997 2,778,495
Reportable segment results TREDPEE (293,625) (23,283) (48,417) (30,715) (5,283) (1,109 (402,432)
Amortisation of other HinEHEESH
intangible assets - (65) (2,701) - - - (2,766)
Depreciation of property, nE BERREINE
plant and equipment (24,899) (7,466) (4,919) (6,960) (24) (118) (44,386)
Fair value gain on financial BRARERBREIIRL
assets at fair value through CREEZ AR BNE
profit or loss - - - 5 - - 5
Impairment loss on goodwil BHERESE (374,508) - - - - - (374,508)
Impairment loss on property, % BERREREESE
plant and equipment - (11,746) (16,016) (16,005) - - (43,767)
Impairment loss on B EERERSE
intangible assets - - (19,821) - - - (19,821)
Income from training services EHRBIA 51,300 - - - - - 51,300
Operating lease payments in MERTFEEREE
respect of rented premises (44,199) (28,412) (13,306) (21,388) (673) (1,081) (109,059)
Sub-lease income AHBA - 9,656 3,654 12,788 - - 26,098
Reportable segment assets IRESBEE 1,846,989 237,028 139,460 91,695 43,150 8,782 2,367,104
Deposits, prepayments and e BEFERAERE
other receivables 18,324
Corporate assets: AREE:
— financial assets -SREAE 20,174
- non-financial assets —FEREE 4,912
Consolidated total assets GAUEE 2,410,514
Additions to non-current segment  FRREFERB A BEE
assets during the year 21,827 2,219 921 - 13 2,237 33,217
Reportable segment liabiltes RESBEE 97,016 8,037 1,986 2 13,216 3,334 123,591
Borrowings EE 1,145,364
Derivative financial instruments TEEBTA 3,880
Corporate liabilties: REBfE:
~ financial liabilities -SRAR 1,652
- non-financial liabilities -FERBE 5,682
Consolidated total liabilities GAHGHE 1,280,169
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

. p A .
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2WER (#)
2014
—Z-QEF
Automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
and provision
of after-sale Branded Branded Audio
services watches jewelleries Fine wines equipment Total
ARERABTH
R 4 0A K
REERRE BEF& RIEHE ki BERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TAT THT THET
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(B3 25) (EHZ3)
Revenue from external customers RENBEF & 2,968,028 120,285 44,104 7,710 21,721 3,161,848
Other income LT ON 127,324 19,903 6,349 14,451 - 168,027
Reportable segment revenue AHES PR 3,095,352 140,188 50,453 22,161 21,721 3,329,875
Reportable segment results AREN BEE 99,672 (1,370) (6,599) (15,179) (3,798) 72,726
Amortisation of other intangible assets 1 E T, & E = (373) (2,817) = = (3,190)
Depreciation of property, mE BERREINE
plant and equipment (22,505) (4,984) (4,940) (7,713) (11) (40,153)
Fair value gains on financial assets at KA A ERERRIIKZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEZ DA BEKE = = = 25 = 25
Income from training services ERABEA 47,200 - - - - 47,200
Operating lease payments in HEEF EERETE
respect of rented premises (42,352) (23,212) (12,339) (21,383) (508) (99,794)
Sub-lease income ARMBA - 9,121 3,428 11,997 = 24,546
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 1,715,107 311,863 172,816 146,287 60,813 2,406,886
Corporate assets: ARBE:
~ financial assets -SREAE 17,798
- non-financial assets ~FEREE 8,928
Consolidated total assets GEBEE 2,433,612
Additions to non-current segment FRABHRDADEE
assets during the year 61,658 6,984 37,440 - 117 106,199
Reportable segment liabilities BEERED:-V 129,223 17,193 2,069 389 6,222 155,096
Borrowings e & 679,496
Corporate liabilities: AR BE:
~ financial liabilties -SRAf 1,445
- non-financial liabilities -EEHERE 6,126
Consolidated total liabilities REEEHE 842,163
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly comprised

income from exhibition and other services income, consultancy

fee income and other corporate income and expenses of the

Group’s headquarter which are not directly attributable to the

business activities of any operating segment.

A reconciliation between the total presented for the Group’s

operating segments and the Group’s key financial figures

TEEFR (#)

APEARWRARRAXEIEBRERER
AR EADRBGUA - 78 8B WA A B A

SEARWIFERE

7B RMEREED

EBEHZEMARRARFAX -

FESAKELENT B

BB

BUBBRERMEINAEE 2 2R BEH

as presented in the consolidated financial statements is as FHEROT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RE —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Reportable segment results AR EDHEE (402,432) 72,726
Bank interest income R1TF B U A 1,637 1,410
Unallocated corporate income F N /NI N 34,220 11,074
Net realised and unrealised MESHITAZEZERK
(losses)/gains on derivative KEH (BR) MR FE
financial instruments (9,622) 161
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEARIMAX (33,873) (31,312)
Finance costs BE KR (48,233) (35,933)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETS AT (BB) = F (458,303) 18,126
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DHER (#)
The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non- REBEKBIINBE S 2 W RIEREE
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into E(eBRITARINIZTIHES 5 :

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMBEFZWE FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-—FE —E—mE —E-IfE —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER FET
Mainland China and B R R BB
Hong Kong (domicile) (&Em2h) 2,497,543 3,023,783 337,383 790,664
Malaysia i 108,158 138,065 20,643 23,043
2,605,701 3,161,848 358,026 818,707
The geographical location of customers is based on the PR ARMHAREIEEEm =
location where the services were provided or the goods AER HERHEHMEFEEMEINE
were delivered. For goodwill and other intangible assets, BB EEAER  RMaIERBEEM
the geographical location is based on the entities’ area of ENEEASMAMAER - AXAFE
operation. The geographical location of other non-current BEETASE AERTEAMES
assets is based on the physical location of the assets. B IR EE s EEREME -

Management of the Company determines that the Group is
domiciled in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which are the
Group’s principal operating locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

8. REVENUE 8.

The Group’s principal activities are sale of automobiles,
branded watches and jewelleries, fine wines, audio equipment
and apparels and provision of automobile related after-sale
services. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from these
activities.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised during
the year is as follows:

iy #8

AEBEREH/NE BEFER
KE 2E SERBRREHEEAR
RUTEHAERRBE -AEEZEE
BMAKAZERH 2 W

FAERKEAERFEZXH 2 W0
T

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

Sale of automobiles MEHE 2,308,608 2,849,038

Sale of branded watches BB FREE 89,073 120,285

Sale of branded jewelleries HEKREHEE 30,746 44,104

Sale of fine wines HBHE 10,758 7,710

Sale of audio equipment TEEREHEE 28,613 21,721

Sale of apparels AR SH & 997 =
Income from provision of after-sale RHEERBEA

services 136,906 118,990

2,605,701 3,161,848
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

Income from training services represented income from provision

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfg A
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(BEF27)
Bank interest income R1THF B A 1,637 1,410
Bonus from suppliers HERELS T 228 50,402 48,047
Net realised and unrealised gain MEeRTACZEZBE R
on derivative financial instruments RER W FHE - 161
Fair value gains on financial assets BRARBEREBERRIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZANBERE
(Note 23) (Fff5£23) 5 25
Gain on disposals of property, MEWE MBI REEZ
plant and equipment & 700 523
Imputed interest revenue FEWE 5 SR8 K E b FE IR
on trade and other receivables HIBZ2BEMERA - 2,429
Income from exhibitions and J& 58 M A e H A Bl 75 A
other services income 10,241 13,938
Income from insurance brokerage R & 42 WA 35,657 33,069
Income from training services* 35 3| AR 75 e A 51,300 47,200
Sub-lease income o WA 26,098 24,546
Consultancy fee income” =0 N 27,000 =
Management fee income EEERA 2,488 =
Others HAth 3,123 9,324
208,651 180,672

of training of initiating knowledge and skill of distributorship of

branded automobiles.

2 Consultancy fee income represented income from provision of 2

consultancy service in relation to an investment project referred

by the Group.

BIIRBEABREHEBERBEAZ R
REEZ Bl Z A -

ARABERAEL —HEAREEN 2
REEB REBARB A -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

10. OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT 10. & (F]R) 5
2015 2014
—E-RE —E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Operating (loss)/profit is arrived K (BBR) =HENR
at after charging/(crediting): (FFA)BATRIER -
Amortisation of other HMhmp & e
intangible assets” 2,766 3,190
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 1,600 1,600
Cost of inventories recognised BRERI ZGFERAE
as expense 2,417,274 2,949,709
Depreciation of property, Y WIS N REZITEH
plant and equipment*# 44,556 40,358
Exchange differences, net PEH FE%R (940) 892
Net realised and unrealised losses/ MTEeMIACEZRR
(gains) on derivative KEHEEE(KE)
financial instruments*## S EE 9,622 (161)
Gain on disposals of property, MEWE - HBE R
plant and equipment HiE 2 W (700) (523)
Operating lease payments in respect ~ HEEF 7 KL HEFHE
of rented premises 122,498 113,786
Defined contribution retirement EREHREBIRIN
benefits scheme contributions & Et 85
for employees 9,988 10,269
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIRA BREZHE
emoluments 41,333 41,547
Total staff costs B TN 48%8 51,321 51,816
# Amortisation of other intangible assets has been included in 5 HEREE#RHED T ATHER -
administrative expenses.
i Depreciation of approximately HK$36,484,000 and 5 #)386,484,000/% JT & 8,072,000/%

HK$8,072,000 (2014: HK$32,480,000 and HK$7,878,000) have
been included in selling and distribution costs and administrative
expenses respectively.

7T (ZZF — W4 : 382,480,000/ 7T &
7,878,000 L) T EE N AIFt AHE
RREBERAARITHRER -

SHEFARMKLER (TN
FHMKA) -

i The amount has been included in other operating expenses ks
(2014: other income).
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BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

11. FINANCE COSTS

11. @E KA

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Interest expenses on financial liabilities R #E K KGR 2 @ R A (&
stated at amortised costs: M ERX:

— borrowings wholly repayable —ARAFENRN

within five years BHERCEE 48,233 35,933

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland
China is charged at 25% (2014: 25%) on estimated assessable
profit in accordance with relevant tax regulations in Mainland

China.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in Malaysia

is charged at 3% on the assessable profit for the year or a fixed

amount of Malaysian Ringgit 20,000, whichever is lower.

12. fTEH X H

EBFERIRIEAFE GRS
AL T E16.5% (ZF— MM :16.5% )
ETIR B S -

REPBEAWABERBRN  NARE
THERMEHBQE 2 MEHTRERG
FHERBURFIR25% 2 M E (ZF— 1Y
F:26%)tE -

ARAEHTERAEMNBARZFTER
AN S FE R F113%3%20,00055 2R
MnSEHZETSH (UREKE AE)
B o

2015 2014
S —E—MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Current tax REEFEIE
— Hong Kong — BB
Charge for the year AEEZH 87 412
— Other jurisdictions —Hi A EER
Charge for the year REFEZH 288 931
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETE 137 =
Deferred tax (Note 32) RIEFTE (T 7E32) (193) (491)
Total income tax expense FriSHi < 458 319 852
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuea)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

12. A8 XX (2)

RERBEFERGSHILESFT (&
8) RN HER

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEFAT (BEB) 5 (458,303) 18,126
Tax calculated at the Hong Kong REBNBHE16.5%
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% ZZE—OF :16.5% )
(2014: 16.5%) SHE IR (75,620) 2,991
Effect of different tax rates of REAMRNEEREE
subsidiaries operating in other WEB AR TREBEZ
jurisdictions wa (2,002) (605)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AR W 2 715 5 & (69) =
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1~ 7] H 3z ) 2 Bl 7 5 £ 66,651 2,780
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIER 2 AREATIAEE 2
not recognised WMETE 3,025 1,114
Tax effect of temporary difference RERZBRERE 2
not recognised MBeE 9,860 (2,115)
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised ANFEEABAEFE X
tax losses utilised this year WRZBMIBBEZ
iS4 (1,663) (3,313)
Under-provision of other jurisdictions’ @7 E & th 5 5 =
income tax in prior years FriStis T~ 2 137 =
Income tax expense FREHi = 319 852
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BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2015

13. EEM &

BE—FE—HAF=A=1+—-HLEE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
EAKEF
ExHe FeRER B R )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER FTHET TER
Executive directors: HITEE:
Tong Kai Lap E RIS 180 1,860 18 2,058
Zheng Hao Jiang BT 1,980 - - 1,980
Zhao Xiao Dong /R 1,200 - - 1,200
Non-executive directors: FE#7TE % -
Zhang Si Jian Rk EE 180 - - 180
Gao Yu = 180 - - 180
Qi Jian Wei e 180 - - 180
Independent non- BUIHNTESE -
executive directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo %2 B 12 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong WE & 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor ~ Z K 180 - - 180
Total A&k 4,440 1,860 18 6,318
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BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2014

13. EEB € (&)

BE_ZT—NF=A=+—RHILFE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
RRAEH
2k e MR BEEPA A%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THBT TET THET TET
Executive directors: HITESE
Tong Kai Lap RIS 180 1,860 15 2,055
Zheng Hao Jiang EET 1,980 - - 1,980
Zhao Xiao Dong HH/NER 1,200 - — 1,200
Non-executive directors: FF#7T7E FH -
Zhang Si Jian iR BB 180 - - 180
Gao Yu =8 180 - - 180
Qi Jian Wei ek 180 - - 180
Independent BUIHNITESE -
non-executive directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo ~ #XB 12 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong ME & 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor ~ ZF K 180 - - 180
Total A&t 4,440 1,860 15 6,315

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years.

RREFER  AEBEYEFAES
e AMERIMARTEBE IR IMAREE
2 SRR SRR 2 F B - KN E 4
B - $8 & 5 W E R B R E (T (] B

& o
&
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BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 14. AN ESHFA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the ERASERUESHATH ER={f
Group, three (2014: three) were directors of the Company —ENF =) ABARBES K
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 13 above. The E7MEeER EXHI 13K E - FRE
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2014: two) MESMA (ZZ—W0F M) &R
individuals during the year were as follows: ATZBE0T -
2015 2014
—E-FE —E—JOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAT
Salaries and other benefits Fe kEMER 2,805 2,805
Retirement benefit scheme RIKAE FET B 3R
contributions 35 30
2,840 2,835
The emoluments payable to the non-director highest paid BN THESERFATZHENTT
individuals fell within the following bands: FIA R
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E—OF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L%
1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T &
2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2
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BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continved) 14. AU ZR S H A L (&)

The emoluments for directors and senior management fell
within the following bands:

EEhAREEBEZHMEN FTII4AE
Bl :

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEL
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T 7 6
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E
1,500,000/ 7T 2 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L&
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ L&
2,500,000/% 7T 1 1
12 13
15. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 5. X"ATEEAEMN (BER),

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$455,685,000 (2014: profit of
HK$18,951,000), a loss of approximately HK$12,138,000
(2014: profit of HK$3,899,000) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

i

RARRBEBEABGEGEEBELD
455,685,000 7L (= Z — P4 4F : % 7
18,951,000;‘%7‘5) f o #912,138,000/%8
JLZ B8 (=T — U4 : 3,899,000/ T
ZHF)ERARNRRMBRRPEE -
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HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed by the Group in
respect of the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015.

17. (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$455,685,000 (2014: profit of HK$18,951,000) by the
weighted average of 2,979,828,850 (2014: 2,979,828,850)
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Diluted (losses)/earnings per share are the same as basic
(losses)/earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence during the years.

16. B2

17.

AEFHNERBEE T —NER-Z
—HE=A=+t—BItEERF TIF
HEZIRERE -

B (BE) BF

BREAN (FR) BADRESEE=-F
—RAFE=ZA=+—BHLEFEARREA
A JE {5 B 18 #9455,685,0008 7T ( =&
— PO 4E : 3% 18,951,000/ 7T ) B A B
B 17 B AR 0 #E 15 £12,979,828,850
f% (== — P04 :2,979,828,850/% ) 57
;’g’j o

HRNEZSFELRECETL B
WEKEE (BR) /ANEGRER
(E18) " BFNER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - HBRRE

GROUP rEE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
R -HER
2B RE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FATT FAT FAT
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FMA—H
Cost BN 207,992 39,091 247,083
Accumulated depreciation Bt E (59,592) (13,219) (72,811)
Net carrying amount BR T F 5B 148,400 25,872 174,272
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE—_T—NE
—A=+—BLt&FE
Opening net carrying amount & #]8E | /F &8 148,400 25,872 174,272
Exchange differences &N =5 3,597 655 4,252
Additions RE 56,124 24,526 80,650
Disposals & - (9,003) (9,003)
Depreciation e (31,730) (8,628) (40,358)
Closing net carrying amount  F 4R ERE /F58 176,391 33,422 209,813
At 31 March 2014 and RZE—mF=ZA=+—H
1 April 2014 MNZF—MFMA—A
Cost X s 269,083 51,163 320,246
Accumulated depreciation Bt E (92,692) (17,741) (110,433)
Net carrying amount BREFRE 176,391 33,422 209,813
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BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. MK - HBFERRE (#)
(Continued)
GROUP (Continued) rEH(E)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
B -#ER
B4 RE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FH T FHTT
Year ended 31 March 2015 ®BE—-Z—H %
ZA=+-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount 4 ¥] BRI JF 8 176,391 33,422 209,813
Exchange differences fEH =58 (2,150) (418) (2,568)
Additions NE 15,309 17,918 33,227
Disposals e (36) (886) (922)
Depreciation e (35,109) (9,447) (44,556)
Impairment BB (43,767) - (43,767)
Closing net carrying amount F & REFH 110,638 40,589 151,227
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RE=H=1+—H
Cost DN 264,301 66,741 331,042
Accumulated depreciation and Z &7 € &R E
impairment (153,663) (26,152) (179,815)
Net carrying amount REFE 110,638 40,589 151,227
During the year, the Group continued to experience FR - BB AT E RSB R
unfavourable market conditions as the anti-extravagance ROHAEEEZERST RKEKRTFF
policies implemented by the government of Mainland China  WASBEEFEHTSMR 4K
has adversely impacted the demand for the Group’s luxury SEWEBL ERLHERZE AAQF
products, which contributed to the decrease in revenue of the EERIAEERERESEESBLTY
Group. In light of these considerations, the directors of the ¥ MERBHEITWESE-

Company conducted a review of the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment under the relevant CGUs of the
Group.
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BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% -HBRXRME (&2)

(Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment
under the CGU of the business of trading of branded watches
(the “Watches CGU”), branded jewelleries (the “Jewelleries
CGU”) and fine wines (the “Fine Wines CGU”) have been
determined by an independent and professionally qualified
valuer based on the fair value less costs of disposal calculation
on an individual basis using direct comparison approach by
making reference to the recent transactions of similar assets
(Level 3 hierarchy).

Since the recoverable amounts of these property, plant and
equipment are lower than their carrying amounts, impairment
losses of HK$11,746,000 (2014: Nil), HK$16,016,000 (2014
Nil) and HK$16,005,000 (2014: Nil), all of which are allocated
to furniture, fixtures and equipment under the Watches CGU,
the Jewelleries CGU and the Fine Wines CGU respectively,
have been recognised in profit or loss during the year to write
down the carrying amounts to the respective recoverable
amounts of HK$819,000, HK$564,000 and HK$894,000 as at
the end of reporting period.

No impairment loss was made on the property, plant and
equipment under the CGU of the business of trading of
automobiles and related parts and accessories and provision
of after-sale services (the “Automobiles CGU”) during the year
(2014: Nil), of which details of impairment testing are disclosed
in note 20.

BYBXAARGEMENBERLL
BESERUBE LIRS (DER
A=) - DAE R E £ R QA ER B K
A EE BERETFHRESER ([F
RRTELEBEN]) BREKRBEEZEH
((RERTELENM]) RBBESHEH
((BBRSELEM]) 2 W% #ER
AR Y AT (ol R

SRR YN - e B g R kY i
REEEDSE MERFAZBEKE
R E &5 18 11,746,000/ 7t (= Z — T
F:4)16,016,0008 7T ( —ZF — Y
%) 16,005,000 7T (=& — Y
F &) (FESBEEEBORIEETF
BRECELEN HKERSELBEMK
ZHRCELBEN T 2HEM KERE
B UEEESEMREREHRZ
#8#8 7] Uk [a] < %E819,000/% 7T ~ 564,000
78 7T }2.894,00078 It

FAWEETEREAZHRESHE S
URRBREEERBEEBRSEEEN
(MRERSELBMN]) 2ME HER
BBETIRAESR (Z2—HF &) -
AEReELEBMREBEASFBERIE
204 75 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY

1. B AR RMB AT Z
=973

PN
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET

FEETRAD - AR A

Unlisted shares, at cost*

* The aggregated investment costs in subsidiaries were less than a
thousand dollar.

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015
are as follows:

Place/country of

- MERARZARERANIR—F T

BB AR R EEN 28 kAR

BREE

R-_E-—AF=A=+—BZ2FEME
NAEZFBWOT

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Issued/ interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held paid-up capital the Company  place of operations
HMRL/ RIS BRITRA/ ERR i
WEARARE ERREEERER s R4 5 BEhErx EBEREZAIN FEXEBREEMY
Carnaby Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share United States Dollar 100%*  Investment holding, BVI
(“BVI"), limited liability (‘US$) 1
company
Carnaby Group Limited RBRIEHS Lak e 100%* REER RBRLHS
BRAE
Sparkle Roll (France) Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding, BVI
company
BR (A8 BRA R RRENES EER E 100% REAKR RERLHES
BRAE
Sparkle Roll Fine Wine Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%  Trading of fine wines,
company Hong Kong
BREBEXERAR RRELES Bk EY 100% HEES &E
BRAE
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BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 19. B ARIEEZRHNEBATZ
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) REER ()
COMPANY (Continued) KANF (&)
Place/country of Percentage of
incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Issued/ interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held paid-up capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ R BRITRE/ KA RS
WEREERE BRREEERER Frfs R4 5 BHEX EBERESZAIN FTEEBREEHY
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100%  Trading of branded
liability company jewelleries and provision
of management service,
Hong Kong
B (BE)BRAR BB BRAF EER 18T 100% AEKEEHIURREER
k% &
Sparkle Roll International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$100 100%  Trading of branded
Distributions Limited liability company watches, fine wines and
wine futures, Hong Kong
BRERREERAR BB BRAF EER 10047 100% HBEFER BERHE
85 &%
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewelry Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HKS$1 100%  Trading of branded watches
liability company and branded jewelleries,
Hong Kong
BREFKREFRAA B BRAR Lak AT 100% AEFEREMGKELS
BE
Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital Renminbi (‘RMB”) 100%  Trading of automobiles
liability company 60,500,000 and related parts and

accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
Mainland China

TRERAEESERAA REAN AR BERER AR#860,500,0007C 100% AEREETHREEES
ARBHREERS &
&)l
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HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

1. B ARIERRMEB AR Z

ek (#)
AAQT (&)

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Issued/ interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held paid-up capital the Company  place of operations
HEMRL/ R BRITRE/ KA R
WELEERE BRREEERER Frfs R4 5 BHEX EBEREZAIN FTEEBREEHY
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,000,0007 100%  Trading of automobiles
Motors Trading Limited* liability company and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
Mainland China
EREARKAEEFERDA hEAM BRAA ERER AR #49,000,0007/ 100% PREREEZHRENES
ARREERRE E
il
Sparkle Roll Brands Market Malaysia, limited liability ~ Ordinary share US$100 100%  Investment holding,
Management Limited (*SRBMM") company Malaysia
BRRETSEEERERDA SRAE BERAT LAk 100% 7T 100% RERK SRAED
(MBRRETSEE])
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited (“TJHY”)* liability company and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
Mainland China
ARERZEEFERERDA PERM ARAF ERER AR %10,000,0007C 100% AEREEZHREEES
(TR=2ER]) ARREERRTE PE
At
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB45,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited (“TJXC")* liability company and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
Mainland China
REEEREEHERARLA hEA BRAA ElRER AR ¥45,000,0007C 100% AEREHAZHERENES
(TR=2EE]) ARREERRE E
A,
Richmile (Shanghai) Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Commerce & Trading Limited? liability company watches and branded
jewelleries and provision
of consultancy services,
Mainland China
WE(LB)BEERAHA hEAY BRAF EWER A& ¥10,000,0007C 100% BRFERELRKEEHU

REHFARE PERA
i
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BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 19. B ARIEEZRHNEBATZ
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) REER ()
COMPANY (Continued) XAT (£)
Place/country of Percentage of
incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Issued/ interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held paid-up capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ R BRITRE/ KA RS
WEAR AR BRREEERER Frfs R4 5 BEhER BREZEIN FEEEREEMY
Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading Mainland China, limited ~ Paid-up capital HK$40,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited? liability company watches, branded

jewelleries and fine
wines and provision of
consultancy services,

Mainland China
BERS (AR BHERERAT REAN AR BEWER 40,000,000 7T 100% ARF&R BEKERELE
B AR ER AR
HE A
Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%  Property investment for
Development Limited® liability company rental purpose, Mainland
China
ERBHRA RN EERERDA HERM ARAF ERER AR 49,000,000 100% MEREFELERLE PE
A
Sparkle Roll Retail Net Malaysia, limited liability ~ Ordinary share US$1 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited company watches, branded
jewelleries and fine wines,
Malaysia
BRTEBRERERAA SRAD BERAF ERR E 100% ABEFEK BEKERELE
25 BREE
Beijing Sparkle Roll Aerial Advertising Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,500,000 100%  Provision of marketing and
Multi-media Limited liability company advertising services,
Mainland China
PREREPEEEEERAA HEN BRAA EWAER AR ¥49,500,0007C 100% RETSREERE FE
A,
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Jing Jie Public Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100%  Provision of public relation
Relation Planning Limited" liability company and marketing services,
Mainland China
PREFHERLARAERAA HER BRAA ERAER AR ¥49,700,0007T 100% RERBREIRTSRE
R A3
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Hang Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100%  Provision of transportation
Xiang International Transportation liability company and storage services,
Agency Limited (“Xin Hang Xiang”)* Mainland China
PREFFMARAREERBERAT  FERM FRAA EWAER AR ¥49,900,0007C 100% REEHREERE FE
(TFfiml) At
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BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 19. HEATIER KRB AT Z

SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

ek (#)
AAQT (&)

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Issued/ interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held paid-up capital the Company  place of operations
EMAL/ R BRITRE/ ERF i
WEAR AR BRREEERER Frfs R4 5 BHEX EBEREZAIN FTEEBREEHY
Sparkle Roll Xin Fa Xian Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,300,000 100%  Trading of artwork and
International Artwork Limited liability company provision of culture and
art exchange activities
services, Mainland China
ERBRAERERERRBRA A hEN BRAA EWRER AR %49,300,0007C 100% EfimEIURRHRXER
mEBRYE REAN
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Gai Nian Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,950,000 100%  Provision of corporate
Business Management Limited* liability company management and
consultancy services,
Mainland China
ERBRA A EERERAA REAM BRAF ERER AR #49,950,0007 100% RECEEBRAARS
HEI A
Beijing Sparkle Roll Goldence Saga Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB64,600,000 100%  Provision of consultancy
International Exhibition Limited® liability company services, Mainland China
IRBRELESERERARAA hEA BRAA ElRER AR %64,600,0007C 100%  REFEARS REAM
Beijing Sparkle Roll Motors Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Provision of insurance
Insurance Agency Limited® liability company agency services,
Mainland China
ERBRTERRRBEERLA HER AR ERER AR %10,000,0007C 100% REFRRRKERS T H
A,
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 51%  Sales and distribution
Development Limited (‘Balanorm Beo”)’ liability company of audio and visual
consumer electronics
products, Mainland China
HEER (AR)BHERARLA hEA BRAA EWER AR ¥50,000,0007C 51% HERREYIHEET
(TEEEE]) Em REA
Beijing Sparkle Roll Fu Sheng Trading Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 51%  Sales and distribution of
Company Limited (‘Fu Sheng”)t liability company apparels and accessories,
Mainland China
TRBHBREEZERAR ([AREE]) hERG BRAA ERER AR 5,000,007 51% HERREEK R
R A3
Sparkle Roll Ding Sheng (Beijing) Trading ~ Mainland China, limited ~ Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Sales and distribution of
Development Limited* liability company merchandised goods,
Mainland China
BREE (ER)BHERARLA HER BRAA ElRER AR %10,000,0007C 100% SHERREESL REMMY
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BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/

establishment and Class of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held
EMAL/ R
WEAR AR BRREEERER Frfs R4 5

10. B ARIERRMEB AT Z
ek om)

QR (&)

Issued/
paid-up capital
BRITRE/
BHEX

Percentage of

effective
interest held by  Principal activities and
the Company  place of operations
KRR i
EREZEIL IEERREERY

Sparkle Roll Bo Ce Education investment

Mainland China, limited ~ Paid-up capital

RMB51,900,000

100%  Providing corporate

Limited (“Bo Ce")** liability company

ERRRERBEREERAA
(B #

FEAL ARAF EWER

The English names of these subsidiaries established in Mainland
China represent management’s best effort at translating the
Chinese names of these subsidiaries as no official English names
have been registered.

Directly held by the Company

On 2 June 2015, the registered capital has been increased from
RMB49,000,000 to RMB194,800,000.

it On 29 May 2015, Xin Hang Xiang has changed its name to
Sparkle Roll Online (Beijing) Business Service Limited #23%1E £%
() BERBER AR

i On 12 June 2015, Bo Ce has changed its name to Sparkle Roll
Bo Ce Trading Development Limited 215K & 5 E AR A 7.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Balanorm and Fu Sheng, 51% owned subsidiaries of the
Company, have material non-controlling interests. The non-
controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.

AR 51,900,000 100%

management and
consultancy services ,
Mainland China

RECEERRAARSE
B A

MRZER T B A KB AR
WEEMERR G Bt ZFH
XEBDOHERERERE NAZSE
MR R 2 X B E -

* HARBEERA

YR ZE-AFAHAZH EMEALH
AR #49,000,0007T 1% i1 = A R #&
194,800,0007T. °

¢ RZZ—RFRA=ZTNB FmAZ
FEE RSB AELR (AL ) B R
BRATF -

#ORZEBE-AFAATA - BRZEH
EUBRRERESERBR AT

EXRFINARRESRREEZEALF
EXEIBNAKEEEFEERE D
ZERRBMBRR -ARBEERS
FRHEEMHMBARZFHE BLTEHR
BRITK

EEEB LIRS (KRR EAS1%Em
ZHIBAR) A BRI AR - W3k
HAKEEEREZMERMBIERT]
ZHEBRERBERBL TNEK-
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BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

1. B AR RMB AT Z
ek om)

Summarised financial information in relation to the non-
controlling interests presented below represents the amounts

TXME5EBIEERER 2P BEER
BMEBENETEARARAREMENZE

before any inter-company eliminations: Lo
Balanorm Beo Fu Sheng
mEER P 2%
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-EHF —T-mF —E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET THERT FHET
As at 31 March R=ZRA=+—-8H
NCI percentage FEERER 2 BDL 49% 49% 49% -
Current assets mBEE 43,707 38,469 6,664 -
Non-current assets FRBEE 94 106 2,118 -
Current liabilities mEBEaE (12,655) (2,089) (3,642) -
Net assets EEFE 31,146 36,486 5,140 =
Carrying amount of NCI s 2 (R E & 58 15,262 17,878 2,519 =
For the year ended BZ=A=+—-B1Lt
31 March FE
Revenue U z5 28,613 21,721 997 -
Loss for the year REEBE (4,885) (3,422) (1,109) =
Total comprehensive FHRABE
income (4,885) (3,422) (1,109) -
Loss allocated to NCI D EEFFERER 2
BB (2,394) (1,677) (543) -
For the year ended BHE=A=+—HIt
31 March FE
Cash flows used in REXBHAAZ
operating activities BEenE (3,185) (54,892) (3,880) =
Cash flows generated & EEFE, (FTH)
from/(used in) ZHReRE
investing activities 39 3,127 (2,235) -
Cash flows generated ~ BB EEFTEZ
from financing BEeRE
activities - 58,039 6,247 -
Net cash (outflows)/ Be (Rd)/HRAFE
inflows (3,146) 6,274 132 -

144

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 123 BAERA 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3§




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

20. GOODWILL 20. &

GROUP

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as

A% E

BEZEREFEADTNOT

follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TH&T
Gross carrying amount BRmE &% 580,679 580,679
Accumulated impairment RETRE (374,508) =
Net carrying amount BREF 5 206,171 580,679

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any allowance for
impairment, is allocated to the Automobiles CGU.

The recoverable amount for the Automobiles CGU as at 31
March 2014 and 2015 was determined based on the value-
in-use calculations using pre-tax cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets, covering a detailed five-year
budget plan, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash
flows at zero percent growth, which do not exceed the long-
term growth rate for the business in which Automobiles CGU
operates. The growth rate reflects the long-term estimated
average growth rates for the product lines of the Automobiles
CGU.

8 BRE S BN E R EE AR
PEERERGELEMN -

RIBE-—NER_E-—RF=A=+—
B RERSEABNZAKEERTY
BEREBENEL KRAELAMER
HRmeHMARSRERA OREFE
ZAFREE)  WKBIRORZIE R
R (HEEXTHBELEAEREESE
BUMEHcREERE) HEH 2B
RenEBT AHEBERXRMRITER
TELABNERRZREMLATHER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. & (&)

GROUP (Continued)

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

rEME (&)

FEREEMAEAZEEBRRET:

2015 2014

e —T—UF

Growth rate after five-year period AFEHE 2 ERE 0% 0%
Discount rate BhIR = 11.98% 13.84%

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast and
research. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the Automobiles CGU.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value-in-use of the Automobiles CGU above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

The Group had originally anticipated that there would
be significant growths of revenue and profitability of the
Automobiles CGU as at the date of acquisition. However, in
the current year, the growth rates of revenue and profitability of
Automobiles CGU had been significantly lower than expected
as the anti-extravagance policies from the government of
Mainland China has adversely impacted the demand for the
Group’s luxury products.

The directors are of the opinion that, based on the value-
in-use calculations stated above, goodwill was impaired by
HK$374,508,000 (2014: Nil) in order to state the carrying
value of the Automobiles CGU to its recoverable amounts of
approximately HK$348,000,000 as at the end of reporting
period.

TEBRRDREBERR URESE
Exfim SRR T ZTHNER
BAEEERE - PTERF 2 RE R R TH B B Al 1
B UYRBRAERCELBENM 2 FER

B o

BEE ERAERSEL Y R
ERATLZ ZBREN AREEIEE
RE Y FAEEAL TSR E
CHE ST DR DR

AEBRAEES REBAHTERS
EEBL 2 WaMAFENHEHEAX
RIER A RAFE aRHEAR
BZRHRREBRRBEZEHAE
BMEZmIBTR EFIERGELE
Lz W KB 2 BREEENTE
5o

EFZRE BELAFEHAEESESE
AERCESBMNAEERLERE
374,508,000 L (=T — U4 : /&) -
LA B RS HAR 2 BREE R E ATk )
% ¥ #9348,000,0005% 7T 51| BR °
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BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21, Hh\EEEE

GROUP REHE
Trademarks
5k
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=%1MAB—H
Gross carrying amount R4 7,601
Accumulated amortisation BT (6,758)
Net carrying amount REFE 843
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-T-—NF=ZA=+—HLFE
Opening net carrying amount FUREF5E 843
Additions NE 25,562
Amortisation charge B (3,190)
Closing net carrying amount FRIEEFHE 23,215
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-E—NWE=ZA=+—HEK
—E—NFMA—H
Gross carrying amount AR AR5 33,163
Accumulated amortisation Z S (9,948)
Net carrying amount AR F R 23,215
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-FT—AF=A=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FHIRREFEE 23,215
Amortisation charge B (2,766)
Impairment A (19,821)
Closing net carrying amount FHREEFE 628
At 31 March 2015 R-B-AF=A=+—H
Gross carrying amount AR A2 5 33,163
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2T E SRR E (32,535)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 628
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BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21, HWEREEE (&)

GROUP (Continued)

As at 31 March 2015, the recoverable amount of the trademark
under the Jewelleries CGU has been determined by an
independent and professionally qualified valuer based on the
fair value less costs of disposal calculation using relief-from-
royalty income approach based on the cash flow projection,
royalty rate and discount rate adopted by the management
(Level 3 hierarchy). The values assigned to the key
assumptions represent management’s assessment of future
trends and are based on both external sources and internal
sources (historical data) and are summarised below.

o A pre-tax discount rate of 13.68% was used which
reflects the specific risks associated with the trademark.

o Revenue was based on anticipated selling prices and
projected based on the historical operating results, the
five-year forecasts and royalty rates with reference to
similar licensing agreement of comparable trademark.

o The cash flows beyond the five-year period until the
expiry of trademark is extrapolated using a growth rate of
0%, which is the long-term estimated average growth rate
for the related CGU.

Since the recoverable amount of the trademark is lower than
its carrying amount, impairment loss of HK$19,821,000 (2014
Nil) has been recognised in profit or loss in current year to
write down the carrying amount of trademark to its recoverable
amount of approximately HK$628,000 as at the end of
reporting period.

&M (&)

R-E-—RF=A=+—RH BuUFEX
EERMGEMD AR KRENERAE
BARBREERAFTEL KBRS
REFRA BENRENREEEMRAZ
MEE(DERFZ) EERERSE
AEBNTERZAKEESHE  TER/R
EoRBENERERRINERAE
CEBEHEB)ERKRERKBE 2 7F
fl - BT

PiT PR 758 AT B 3R % 13.68% [ Bk 62 7
BERZHEERR -

o REDEREHEERUBEME
BEE AFRARSFEEAR
s YESRTELREEY
SIS EF U5 3

. DFMREEEEERALZR
B T8 FI0% .2 K AR
EBEREDABROELED
ZRME P RE

HREEZAKRESERAREREE S
B HERAFEZBERERREE
819,821,000 T (= —HF : &)

NS RESEMRERS R
A] Uy [B] 4 %8 49628,000/%8 JT °
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BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

22. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

GROUP

(a) Rental deposits paid to a related party

The Group entered into several agreements with Mr. Qi
Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for leasing of properties as office premises,
warehouse and showrooms in Mainland China to the
Group. The rental deposits to Mr. Qi of approximately
HK$18,181,000 (2014: HK$18,181,000) have been
recognised as non-current assets as at 31 March 2015.

(b) Amounts due from related parties

22 AE AT 246
XEH
(a) Efft—ZBEA+HLES

AEERAQRRZEERESE
MAEE([HEENRAAEE
HEETMNRFPE AU 2 Y
ERAE REREEVET
E - ENEEEZHESESD
18,181,000 L (ZF — M :
18,181,000 L) ER=E— R &
A=+ HERRBIERBEE-

(b) EREEALFE

Maximum

balance
As at  outstanding As
31 March during 1 April
2015 the year 2014

R-Z2-I1F REARS R-T-DOF
=A=t—-8 REEBLEER MA-—H

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET FHET FAT
Mr. Qi 2R 0] 18,000 18,325 18,325
tRREEEEXERAR LtRBRXEBHE
(“BJSRGB’) BRAA]
(T&BEx]) (i) 1,410 1,410 =
19,410 18,325

(i) The amount due from Mr. Qi resulting from prepaid rental
expenses for leasing of properties as office premises,
bonded warehouse and showrooms in Mainland China to
the Group is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The directors expect such amount to be utilised
through setting off future rental expenses payable to this
related party within one year.

(i) The amount due from BJSRGB, a company controlled
by Mr. Qi, is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

() BEsEAEEEEE TR
A2 MEERDE RTRE
K REETAN 2 M £ 5 S i i U B
FEZFAREIEMR RS RA
BERERE - EERPAUSE
B BRI — F N % B
AL ZARRESHAZTAEA -

(i) BREHEEZE (—RAFELEE
Bz AE) 2 RIEEER - 28
RBRERERE -
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BE_T—

23.

24,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

GROUP

The Group had in prior year acquired certain wine futures which
are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. During the year, the Group had exercised all these wine
futures and a gain of approximately HK$5,000 arising from the
exercise of wine futures had been recognised in profit or loss
for the year and included in other income as disclosed in note
9. The Group does not own any wine futures as at 31 March
2015.

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

23.

BARERBERRIIKR S
gE

AEE

RBEFE AEBERESTHBZ
EHELIBEARERAAREREBERIE
LEBMEBE - NAFE NEBEHT
FZEHRE - TERBREE 2 WELD
5,000 L ERAFE 2 Bk P iER
Wt AW FEOFTH 58 2 HALRA - RZF
—hAFE=A=+—H AKEBFETM
HAH

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are BRARBEREBERKRIEKZEREENER
presented within the section of operating activities as part of EHERMERCEXEB —HRNINIESE
changes in working capital in the consolidated statement of S EE s —Hoo
cash flows.
INVENTORIES 24. 8
GROUP r&EH
2015 2014
—E-RF —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
Raw materials and consumables R K H FE 30,586 24,795
Merchandised goods & o 1,468,964 917,280
1,499,550 942,075

As at 31 March 2015, merchandised goods of approximately
HK$793,944,000 (2014: HK$380,573,000) have been pledged
for borrowings of approximately HK$939,433,000 (2014:
HK$378,272,000) (Note 31).

R—_E—HAF=ZA=Z+—H8 A&
#9793,944,0008 L (=& — 4 4 -
380,573,000 7t ) < @ @ B B 4
939,433,000 L (=& — I 4F :
378,272,000/ 7T ) 2 fEEIEE R (M5
31) °
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BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. EIWE 5 1A
GROUP REHE

The Group’s credit policy for sales to retail customers are
mainly on receipts in advance from customers or cash on
delivery while the credit policy for sales to wholesale customers
are mainly on a credit basis up to 18 months (2014: up to 18
months). The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding trade receivables and has a credit control policy to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice dates, and net of
impairment losses, is as follows:

AEEEHTERPHEZEERRE
Eﬁﬁwmﬁﬁﬁf [ ARITE =N kA
EPFHEZFEERRAZTERZZ18
BA(ZZ—mF: KZ18A) 2EE
Hle ARESKEERKEEEE SR

BEETEREREE URGIEEEEER
RUABEERBRBRERK EEEEH
b R

ERBHRARARAMRBMERBRR 2RI
BHFRARRERRZREDINAOT

2015 2014

—F-1% —T-lF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

0 — 30 days 0£30H 136 2,835
31 - 60 days 31260H - 181
61 — 90 days 61290H - 347
Over 90 days @0 H - 1,691
136 5,054
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HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. EWE 5 RIE (4)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are AEBRBHWRAER REEREFE
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as WE SHIBZRRDTUOT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MmOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FATT
Neither past due nor impaired 7R %80 B IR R R (B 136 3,630
Not more than 1 year past due BHEREBR—F - 1,424
136 5,054
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired WARBE B RBEZEKE ZHETIR
related to certain customers from whom there was no recent BETHRWERELNCLHFZERF

history of default.
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BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

26.

27.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

B FASRERAEMER

RECEIVABLES MIE
Group Company
rE FN/NC]
2015 2014 2015 2014
—®-IF —E-JE —E-IF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FET FExT FET
Deposits e 31,776 24,307 100 100
Prepayments TR 18,972 34,256 - =
Other receivables Hith e UG FR 1B 170,576 149,120 - =
221,324 207,683 100 100

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
BANKS AND IN HAND

GROUP AND COMPANY

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Certain of the Group’s and the Company’s
deposits have been pledged to secure general facilities granted
to the Group (Note 31). As at 31 March 2015, the deposits
bore interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.90% per annum
(2014: ranging from 0.01% to 2.80% per annum) which are
close to the market interest rates. The pledged deposits will be
released upon the settlement of the relevant borrowings.

Included in cash at banks and in hand of the Group is
approximately HK$61,329,000 (2014: HK$251,785,000) of
bank balances denominated in RMB and is placed with banks
in Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

27. EEHEFERUARBRITRFE

Be
FEBRE DT

IRITHEBZF B TIET B IRITERF X
WEBHE ANEEBRAARETHER
EEEH URESASERE 2 —KE
& (f331) R-E—RF=A=1+—
B & A EF E N F0.01%%E2.90%
(ZZE— M :0.01%%2.80% ) it &
BATSHE - BB EFERENE
BAEERRR -

AREBZHRITRFERSBEY
61,329,000 L (=ZF — M F:
251,785,000/ 7T ) 2 $R1T#E 8% - TIBAA
REFE WEFERFEAM ZRITA-
ARBTAIBEHLBAEMEY B
B () #h 2 ONBE IR D K A B - BB
RAINEERRE AEBEERNKERE
B INE TS 2 SRITIE AR LRI
#Ifgo

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B35 @ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

153




BsHmRM T (48

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

28. TRADE PAYABLES

GROUP

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables which

28. ERE ZFE

A&

ERBEAHZENESFTERRSH

based on the invoice dates as at the end of the reporting RZBRE DT
period:

2015 2014
—F-1% —F-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 3,970 11,345
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,890 4,993
61 — 90 days 61290H 6,885 1,172
Over 90 days H#BiBo0H 10,320 10,828
24,065 28,338
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BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

29. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED 290, HWAIE - EtEARHA
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES PE 13 R IE
Group Company
rEE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—EB-1F ik —2-1% —F-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET THxT FHET
Current portion: B
Receipts in advance BUWEF ZE
from customers 84,015 113,974 - -
Accrued charges st E A 2,556 2,177 1,457 1,378
Other payables H B FUR 14,212 11,712 13 13
100,783 127,863 1,470 1,391
Non-current portion:  FHRE {2 :
Other payables H i fE 1 3R 395 340 - -
30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fTE€mIT A
GROUP REH

The Group used foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate
exchange rate exposure of Euros (‘EUR”) against HK$. The
foreign currency forward contracts are not designated for
hedge purposes and are measured at fair value through profit
or loss as described in note 41.6. Realised and unrealised
losses on foreign currency forward contracts amounting to
HK$9,622,000 were charged to profit or loss during the year
(2014: gains of HK$161,000).

RNEBFAIMNE R A LR E BT KB
L2 EEE R - INERIE W IEETE
B R Ag W E4H 6T tiE AR A
REBERITE-INERBAEHZEEH
K R 35 518 /9,622,000 L (= F
— P04 U 25161,000/8 7T ) » B AR E
EZ B RMG-
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BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

31. BORROWINGS 31. B &
Group Company
rEH FINUNE|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-IE —T-F —E-EE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT FER FET
Current portion: REHS
Bank loans, guaranteed $R/TE R (B HER) 114,726 197,000 - 40,000
Bank loans, secured RITER (FER) 176,444 14,138 - =
Other loans, secured HtER (FHMF) 143,337 160,082 - =
Bank loans, secured RITER
and guaranteed (BEEARER) 531,410 123,975 - =
Other loans, secured HiE®R
and guaranteed (EEERER) 168,649 178,364 - =
Bank overdrafts, BITES
secured and (BHEAMER)
guaranteed 10,798 5,937 - -
1,145,364 679,496 - 40,000
At the end of the reporting period, total borrowings were RNEEEAR  EEABRETHRF M
scheduled to repay as follows: D
Group Company
rEE AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-fHF —E—mEF —E-EE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FET FER FAET
On demand or within BEXF—FR
one year 1,145,364 679,496 - 40,000
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BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

31. BORROWINGS (continuead)

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted

interest rates) on the borrowings are:

31. B E (&)

EEZERFIE (TERTONER) R :

Group Company
AEH KRR
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-%F ki “B-%F ki
Bank loans, secured HIBOR + 2.5% HIBOR + 2.5% N/A HIBOR + 4%
and/or guaranteed to HIBOR + 3%  to HIBOR + 4% per annum
per annum, per annum,
LIBOR +1.8% to  LIBOR + 1.8% to
LIBOR + 2.5% LIBOR + 2.5%
per annum and per annum and
5.7% to 7.8% 6.16% to 7.8%
per annum per annum
RITER BRBRTER BRRITREE TEAR BERRITRZE
(BEAR/HER) FER+ERE  FEX+FENE FEEL
25%2FH 25%ZE % FEHE4%
RITE%E RITRIZE
FER+FERE  FEX+ENE
3% BT 4% - fRERIT
EEFEE REHFLSE
+FRFIB%E  +FFE18%E
BT wBIRIT
BEFEE EEZidoe
+EF%2.5% +EFF%2.5%
URERN=E AR &
5.7%Z%7.8% 6.16%%7.8%
Other loans, secured 7.1% to 8.25% 7.1% t0 8.25% N/A N/A
and/or guaranteed per annum per annum
Hi M FHNRIA%E FHMETA%ZE TER i
(BERR/HER) 8.25% 8.25%
Bank overdrafts, HIBOR + 3% HIBOR + 3% N/A N/A
secured and guaranteed per annum per annum
RITEX BHERITRE BBRITRZE TEA TER
(BEMRER) FEE Fa%
+EF%E3% +E M E3%
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BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

31. BORROWINGS (continuead)

31.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2015, certain inventories (Note 24)
and deposits (Note 27) of the Group and of the Company were
pledged to secure general facilities granted to the Group.

The borrowings were also subject to corporate guarantees

executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the

years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

BE#)

R_E-—NMER_T—FF=Z/A=+—
B AEERAQARCERETHESE
(M 5E24) RfF5k (M sE27) fEAARE
EER s, —MpE 2 ER-

NBE-F-MER-F-—HF=A
=+-BLEEE BEABAAARE
FHBARSELZ O EERIFEM-

BEZERASBIINATIIEHEE:

Group Company
rEH RAF

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-AE —E—F —E-IF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAER FAT FAER FAT
Swiss Franc (‘CHF") I A RP 10,445 10,737 - =
EUR BT 2,230 7,574 - =
Us$ e 2,703 1,252 - =
HK$ BT 14,074 84,661 - 40,000
RMB AR 1,115,912 575,272 - =
1,145,364 679,496 - 40,000
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BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

32. DEFERRED TAX 32. RN IE
GROUP KEE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences BRI TNRE & &L £ AERELD
under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when TRHEERNCERMRE A ERE
the temporary differences are expected to reverse. HitEo
The movement on the deferred tax liabilities during the year is BEEHIEEERFEFAZEBHAT
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
At beginning of the year ) 1,239 1,730
Deferred taxation credited to FFABER ZIEERIE
profit or loss (Note 12) (FFEE12) (193) (491)
At end of the year F 1,046 1,239
The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the FHRNERBFRETBRABRERZEL
consolidated statement of financial position during the year is MEEaEEHWT :
as follows:
Accelerated Temporary
tax difference
depreciation on inventories Total
FEZ
MEREBHE THEERE &5t
HK$’ 000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TAT
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FmWA—H 206 1,624 1,730
Credited to profit or loss  &F AR = (491) (491)
At 31 March 2014 and RZZE—HF
1 April 2014 EA=T—B K
—ZT—-OFWM™A—H 206 1,033 1,239
Credited to profit or loss  FF A X - (193) (193)
At 31 March 2015 R-ZB—ARF=HA=+—H 206 840 1,046
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BE—_ZT—RAF=_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. IEAERIE (&)

GROUP (Continued)

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has not recognised deductible
temporary differences on accelerated tax depreciation of
approximately HK$43,767,000 (2014: Nil) as it is not probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$35,259,000 (2014:
HK$30,663,000) available for offset against future taxable
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries
which incurred these estimated unused tax losses as at the
end of the reporting period. The estimated unused tax losses
arising in Mainland China of approximately HK$15,132,000
(2014: HK$8,030,000) will be expired if they are not utilised to
set off against the taxable profits within five years from the year
in which they arose under the current tax legislation in Mainland
China.

Deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$37,302,000 (2014:
HK$37,309,000) have not been established for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries because the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future.
Such unremitted earnings associated with investments in
subsidiaries totalled approximately HK$746,047,000 (2014:
HK$746,171,000) as at 31 March 2015.

&M (&)

R-ZE—RAF=ZA=+—H8B ZNFK

A EE B IER B E M Al B A Al R E

RER WASETERMNRTIEFTE

SR 0] R s = £ 4943,767,0008 7T
TN ) o

RBEHR AEB 2 G RBAKIE
&5 18 #935,259,000/%8 7T ( = F — PY 4F :
30,663,000/ 7T, ) A] A3 1E K 8 K 2R J& 3R
Maf ERZERMERREERF
R AREBAREREB B AR Z AKX
AR EB RN & ANEE I EE
RELERIBEEE - BEPRRHIRITH
F R BN E S 2 FEt AR BB HE
&5 18 #915,132,000% 7T (= F — U 4F :
8,030,000/ 7T ) tR R B M EE & FE AR AT
TFENBA NEEERB & H - &
R

ERARNREFETHBE AR ZERE
B MEREZEETRNA R R
REBE R ERZEHBLAIRB
RAEFENZENBRELELCHIES
f& #937,302,0008 7L (=& — U & :
37,309,000 7T) - K- —HF=A
=t+t—H HZEWBRARKEF@AZ
KiBEREF A H 4 AB746,047,0007 7T
—ZT— P04 :746,171,00087C) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_ZT—RAF=—_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZREREAE g
HK$’000
THET
Authorised: EEMR A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each SR E0.002/8 7T 2 A%
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, RZE—=FMA—A8-
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —E—MmNF=A=+—H"
—E-MEMNA—-—B R
—T-RF=A=+—H  250,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBZRA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each B ME0.0028 L2 LBk
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, RZZE—=FWA—81-
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —E—mMFE=A=+—H"
—E-—MENA—BR
—E-RF=A=+—H 2,979,828,850 5,959
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

34. RESERVES

34.1 Group

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference

between the nominal amount of the shares of the

subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired

by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares

issued for the acquisition under a group reorganisation in
1997.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group consists of:

(i)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on
10 August 2004, the Company reduced its
share premium by an amount of approximately
HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the provisions
of Section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses;

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 31 July
2009, the Company reduced its share premium by
an amount of approximately HK$260,000,000 and
transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$206,327,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses;

34. %%

341 A5 E

¥ 5l 1 1

AEBEZRHRIFEEEARANE
MBARKRNERZERMH 2E
BER-NAWNEFETEEEME
BRREMETZRNEEME
ZER-

ARG

AEBZBARBERE:

(i)

BEAATR-_ZEZHEN
ATHBRTZBRRBAFRE
LFRBZEIRER ARQ
ARBEERE-NN\—F2
AE 4618 2 HERHR D
a2 Bl Bl 49286,300,0007%
TR REERERA
AZBABBEAN-RA &
NAERBARBBEREALD
236,906,0007% 7T JA 1K §5 2
ETEE

BEAABTR BT AE+
A=+—HRTZRERF
A LBBAZERIRAZES:
AR A E R D R B E R
260,000,000/ 7t * I 1 7% &
BEREADNAZHEARS
BRA-RABE ARFERBAR
# BR 7R #) A3 49206,327,000
PETCLAMK 88 R AT 518
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

34. RESERVES (Continued) 34. #E &)

34.1 Group (Continued) 341 AEE (£&)

Contributed surplus (Continued)

(i)  Dividends paid out of contributed surplus in prior
years for a total of approximately HK$76,999,000;
and

(iv) Transfer of approximately HK$1,467,000 and
HK$1,309,000 from share option reserve due to
forfeiture/lapse of share options during the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2015 respectively.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration and (i) the carrying amount of the partial
interests in subsidiaries disposed of and (i) the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests acquired.

Statutory reserve

The Group’s statutory reserve represents appropriations
of profits retained by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.
In accordance with the respective articles of association
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, they are required
to appropriate amount not less than 10% of their profits
after income tax to statutory reserve each year, until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Such a reserve may be used to reduce any losses
incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

BAZE (&

(i) BEFERLBARBBIKN
2 B A H#4976,999,000/8
JT MK

—hAE=ZA=1+—BL#F
- BB B BUR M R
muEBEEFEEER 2O
1,467,000/ 7T % 1,309,000
BT e

Hfttt#

HipEEEREE)MEE 2D
BB~ Rl A ot 2 AR TE & BRI (i) P I
BrimhEa s ROSBEME
ZERe

EEHE

AEREZREFBIEAR R T B
BRBREEN 2 DB - RIBAR
ATENEAREE cHBETR
AR ZERRIAGEREKME
RN D I10% 7 BL 205 TE 7
B EEREEREREMEARAZ
50% 3 b ° 5 f A AR R FIRUAE fA]
FMELZBERIABARBERER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

34. RESERVES (continuead)

34. #fE (&)

34.2 Company 34.2 & F]
Share Capital ~ Share option Contributed  Accumulated
premium* reserve’ reserve’ surplus* losses’ Total
BB EE EARE  BRERE BABHB 2iER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT ThER Fhx Fix FiEn TiET
At 1 April 2013 R-Z2-=4WA—-AH 799,335 3,508 2,776 77,354 (70,534) 812,439
Profit for the year and total FEERFIRAFEZANALE
comprehensive income for the year - - - - 3,899 3,899
Forfeiture/lapse of share options BRERR /&R - - (1,467) 1,467 - -
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-Z2-mE=A=+-AR
“F-NEmA-A 799,335 3,508 1,309 78,821 (66,635) 816,338
Profit for the year and total FEERFIRAEER2ARALE
comprehensive income for the year - - - - 10,915 10,915
Lapse of share options BIRELN - - (1,309) 1,309 - -
At 31 March 2015 R-E-E£=A=t+-H 799,335 3,508 - 80,130 (55,720) 827,253
* The contributed surplus of the Company consists of: * KRR ZEBABBREIE:

(i) HK$51,286,000 being the difference between the
underlying consolidated net assets of Global Food
Culture Group Limited and its subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares which were
issued under a group reorganisation in 1997; and

(i) those as described in the sub-note headed

“Contributed

i These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s
reserves of approximately HK$827,253,000 (2014:
HK$816,338,000) in the Company’s statement of financial

position.

Surplus” under note 34.1.

() REKEXEEEERA
Bl R E M B A R 2 AR R 4R
EEEFEEARNRARN
—NANEFETEEER
BT < E{EM A
2 Z#51,286,000/% T ;
&

@iy  FIFES4.1 [BAA ZEsR] B
T BRI

E#FEEREBEARATK
RABRAZARNRBAFEED
827,253,000/ T (=& — 1
£ : 816,338,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

35.

36.

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST
IN A SUBSIDIARY

GROUP

On 1 June 20183, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Mr. Shi to acquire the 30% issued share
capital in SRBMM at a consideration of RMB72,000,000
Both TJHY and TJXC became wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company upon completion of

(the “Acquisition”).

the Acquisition. Excess of consideration over cost after tax
of approximately HK$68,179,000 was recognised in equity
directly and included in other reserve during the year ended
31 March 2014. The consideration of the Acquisition had been
fully settled.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. The Scheme was expired on 6 October
2012.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the
Company’s new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
adopted and the Scheme was terminated.

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees,
including executive directors, suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants and joint venture partners or business alliances of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

35.

36.

W B8 7A — RE BT B X B) 2 BB A
R

AEE
W_E—ZFXxA—A AEEREL
EET S~ BB R R

SIS EI0NE HITRA REAARY
72,000,0007C ([WHE HIE ) - R U BE
BHETKE KEERARREREEHYK
BARNTIZEZENBAR -REEZT
—ME=ZA=+—BULFEEHERER
R AR 2 Z 58 (R 1& ) £968,179,000
BT BEEERE=BERRREMmGEE
AR WEEBE 2 REHDBEER-

DR RER 2 EERHE
$ﬂﬂ2%%%ﬁﬂwaﬁﬂnﬂm

BARINR_TEZ_F+ALRAE£TZ
HX%%/DJ'UQQJ:L}EZ*Z@J%E%%%

e EIKHH’N% %%%&/\ﬁﬂﬁ
B8R ZaTElE ——HF+AR
B JiE e

BERARGR_ZE——FNA_+HE

TZBRRBEFAE BB EBRE
& ARAIERAFBRAER S ([F&
gll) MmstEE &R

REEHE ARREFTSARBHE
EEETEEREER BRARRXE

EAMBEARZHTES HER ¥
P BEREEBARAE SRR EB

B ARBARED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 36. URMDEER 2 EER/E

COMPENSATION (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company’s ordinary shares.

Details of the share options granted by the Company pursuant
to the Scheme and the share options outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were as follows:

(%)

ERERRRIRRELBER - ATIRIE
ZETEIR T 2 IR S & 2 IR 4B 2
NSBBARR AN EMEED ZETR
BZ210% - FERERRBIRR B it
Bl RER —FERAIE TEREAZE
BEMS R ZBRHOEE  TEBBEARD
AIREREBE EITRMD 21% % T
FERRIBIUIENITES 2 BREMN
BBARRBRAZ01%HEBEBB
5,000,000/ 7T * Bl LB B SE AR FIAR
HALE -

Rz BRESARK D R BRET21
B R A - 0 5 A I BB RO R AR
RSB TT © 18 B HE ] /i B IR A 3
BHEERLEME HBEFER LHE
TE-THEERARAESTEE HET
BERRONR G B BER A2
B BRONBERBRERD A BT AE
R 5 BEB R PR ESRE D E
BE(AERERE) -

BB RER 2 BEMES AR
RE-RBEBBITARATERSI K
SEVEXRKECTRTREREER
Pt -

RNRABRIEZ T B 2 B RE A KRR
MEHREARITE 2 BRE 15
T

2015 —EBE-—FHEF
Number of options
RREYR
Balance at Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Balance at
Exercise 1 April during during during during the 31 March
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2014 the year the year the year year 2015
RZE-0%F RZE-1F
~ ~ A-H ) =R=1-H
RRAER RYEH s hfi% &8 ERRY ERfiR EREY ERER &8
HK(
AT
Employees 4 July 2011 4 July 2011 to 3 July 2014 1.52 4,456,000 - - - (4,456,000) -
ES -5t AmA £t AMAZ
“E-MELA=H
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

36. AR BERZEEWHE

COMPENSATION (continued) (%)
2014 —Z-mEF
Number of options
BRiELR
Balance at Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2013 the year the year the year the year 2014
RZE-=F RZZ-RF
= - . B mA—A _ ) } . ZA=t-H
AR AR RtiEH s ﬁﬁ% LR ERFR ERffE ERZH ERER ZEH
HKS
AT
Directors
Ez
Zhang Si Jian 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 5,000,000 - - 9 (6,000,000 -
KB “2-Z5MA+RA  -E-TEMA{+RAZR
“E-ZENMATEA
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 1,504,000 - - - (1,504,000) -
ERE “2-Z5MA+RA  -E-TEMA{+RAZR
“E-ZENMATEA
Lam Kwok Cheong 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 506,000 - - - (596,000) -
MHEE ZZ-TEMATRA  -Z-TEMATRHEEZE
“E-ZENMATEA
Lee Thomas Kang Bor 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 1,248,000 - - - (1,248,000) -
ZHER “2-Z5MA+RA  -E-TEMA1RAZR
“E-ZENMATEA
I2 aggregate 8,348,000 - - - (8,348,000) -
g
Employees 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 2,504,000 - - - (2,504,000) -
ES “Z-ZENA+TREA  -—Z-ZENAL+EHAZ
—Z-Z£MA+mA
4 July 2011 4 July 2011 to 3 July 2014 1.52 4,912,000 - - (456,000) - 4,456,000
-5t AmA ZZ——£tAMAZ
“E-MELA=H
In aggregate 7,416,000 - - (456,000 (2,504,000) 4,456,000
At
an
Totzjrl 16,764,000 - - (456,000 (10,852,000) 4,456,000
f;

As at 31 March 2014, the weighted average exercise price for
the outstanding share options was HK$1.52 per share and their
weighted average remaining contractual life was 0.3 year.

The weighted average exercise price for the forfeited share
options were HK$1.52 per share during the year ended 31
March 2014 while the weighted average exercise price for
the lapsed share options were HK$1.52 (2014: HK$0.82) per

share.

There was no share option outstanding under the New Scheme
as at 31 March 2015.

RZE—MFE=A=+—0 HKR1TE
BB NEFHITEERTR.52
AL EMEFAHRTEHFHR0.3

E'Eo

RBE-_Z-—NF=A=+—HILFE
U B 2 N ITEEREK
1.52/8 7T + T 2K 2 8 B e 2 In e 719

TEBAER.528 T
0.8287T) °

—=—

4

RZZE-—RAF=R=+—8H #:t&E

TS 4 i) R AT M 2 P LA o

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 %@ A2 " ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#§

167




BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Group as lessor

The Group sub-leases out a number of rented premises
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial non-
cancellable period of 5 years. The rentals on this lease
are calculated based on a percentage of the relevant
sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental agreement.
Contingent rents recognised in profit or loss during the
year amounted to approximately HK$26,098,000 (2014
HK$24,546,000).

Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments payable by the Group under
non-cancellable operating leases, including operating

lease commitment to related parties as disclosed in note
40(b), are as follows:

4K

s ==

(a)

(b)

EHEEEE

REBERHBEA

AEEREBELEEHE T HEZHE
HEMZE -HEYH BHSE - Z
AR -BERERZE LHEEZ
HeRMHEFPEBHEESE2 AL
HE-RAFE REZRERZ
AT & #97/526,098,000/8 7T (=
T — U4 : 24,546,000/ 70) ©

FEBE/ERA

RERE BAR - AR & BB 51 AT ey
KERERMN 2 R REHRER
TE 48 58 (B 15 a0 B 7£40(0) AT # B
M—ZASEATERZEEHE
AYE)WT

2015 2014

—E-hF —E—mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET &L

Within one year —F R 137,853 99,208
In the second to fifth years —HFEERF

inclusive (BREEEMF) 472,839 327,495

After five years AFLE 115,462 206,729

726,154 633,432

The Group leases a number of office premises, bonded
warehouse, showrooms and staff quarters under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
one to ten years (2014: one to ten years). None of these
leases include contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any significant operating
lease commitments.

AREBRBRKLHERERZERAE -
REEeE BREREITE -HEYS

RPE-—EZE+F (T —TF:

F) EFHEMTE/EIAES-

ARRRALEEMERLERE

— =

ZEHE o
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BHE—_T—RAF=—_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

38.

39.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EARKIE
GROUP REHE
2015 2014
—E-AF —EFmEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT F# T
Contracted but not provided for MEBEWME HER
in respect of purchase of property, REC TN EREE
plant and equipment - 204

The Company does not have any significant capital and other
commitment.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

COMPANY

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
executed corporate guarantee to certain banks with respect
to general banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Company of approximately HK$145,060,000 (2014:
HK$145,060,000). The maximum liability of the Company as at
31 March 2015 under the guarantees is the amount of facilities
drawn down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees, being HK$20,969,000 (2014: HK$64,224,000). At
the end of the reporting period, no provision for the Company’s
obligation under the financial guarantee contracts has been
made. The directors of the Company considered that it was not
probable that the repayments of the borrowings would be in
default.

39.

AR B EAE A B R E AN N E At A

BBRREN
AT

RBEHR RRABRES THEA T
B 2 —MRIRTT15 B 49145,060,0007%8
7t (=& — [ 4 : 145,060,000/ 7T ) A
ETRITELRARER - RZT—RHF
ZAZt+—B ARRBEEREAEZ
ERETAERETZIMERAAM
RE 2= 8% 520,969,000 T (=
T —JO4F : 64,224,000 7T ) ° P& HA
R UERARNFTRIBERERENCE
EFIRBE A RREERBTKRAL
PRBREEERZIER -
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BHE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

Related party transactions
GROUP
During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in

these financial statements, the Group had the following
significant transactions with related parties:

(a)

40. BEATHE

BEALTZRE
REE

FA - BRRAM B RERELAM LD P
BEEN NEEEEEEALTE
TIIERRS:

2015 2014
—E-AF —F—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
Rental expense to Mr. Qi* SN TEEECHER T 72,480 69,076
Management fees income RESBEBFECBERERA
from BJSRGB 2,488 -
Purchase of property, plant and ~ MZEELEBEEWE -
equipment from Mr. Qi* eSS - 886
* Mr. Qi is a substantial shareholder of the Company * BEEABARRRZEERRE

All the related party transactions are conducted in the
ordinary course of business at prices and terms based on
mutual agreement.

The directors of the Company considered that the
directors’ emoluments as set out in note 13 is equivalent
to the Group’s key management’s remuneration.

PIEEALTZRZHNBEER
BREFRBEEREZER K
ERARAETT

AREEERR ME13MEE
EMEHERAEEZTEZEEA
B2 F -
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BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 40. BEANTHE &)

(b) Operating lease commitment to related parties
GROUP
At the end of the reporting period, the total future

minimum lease payments payable by the Group to Mr. Qi
under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

(b) FBEAL{ES > 0% E AR
#EH
BB HR - SR R IR AT

REHERNBELEEZ RRRE
HERHEBBREFHIWT

2015 2014

—E-FF —E—mE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Within one year —F A 72,000 54,251
In the second to fifth years F_FEFERF

inclusive (BEEEMSF) 288,000 290,304

After five years HF L 111,750 203,364

471,750 547,919

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Company’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

1. TREREERQRER

Him

AEERNAEEBEETERASRT
B -AmAZEBER- ZFTRER
BEMEAR (BREERER FEE
e HMERER) EERR LR
14 L B o

CREREERASEAN NS WH
EXEETA-EESHRERZER
BEAEREESRMSARIERT -
BRAEEDEHZASRE -

RRBENEESRIANFARFZ
B
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BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ©RiEREER AABEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)
41.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities M1 eHEEREEER
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of RUBRABRKREY 2 RE S5
financial position relate to the following categories of BRUTeRHEERSCRAGE
financial assets and financial liabilities: Bl :
Group Company
rEE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-If —T-NF ZB-RF —T@OF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET THERT FAT
Financial assets CHEE

Financial assets at fair value &2 2 EREZE R E

through profit or loss ZEREE
— Held for trading —FEEE - 549 - =
Loans and receivables: BER R WA

— Rental deposits paid BN —BEEALT

to a related party Heke 18,181 18,181 - =
— Trade receivables —EWE F5IA 136 5,054 - =
- Deposits and other — e REMER

receivables FIE 170,576 149,120 - -
- Amounts due from —EMEE A LA

related parties 19,410 18,325 - -
- Amounts due from — UK B R B FRIA

subsidiaries - - 841,280 859,255
- Pledged deposits —-BEBEX 230,470 87,803 3,664 6,588
- Cash at banks and —RIRFERS

in hand 63,417 340,235 584 1,113

502,190 619,267 845,528 866,956
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BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. iR REERAAENE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
41.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 4111 SREEREBER (&)
(Continued)
Group Company
rEE b N
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —E@mE CZE-HF —T-@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET FET FAET
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities at fair BERAREREBERRIIE
value through profit or ZemaE
loss
- Designated upon initial —~ RO B HREIETE
recognition 3,880 - - -
Financial liabilities measured A $5R At E 2
at amortised cost: cRAaE:
— Trade payables -ERESHE 24,065 28,338 - =
- Accrued charges and — Bt ERKEM
other payables JE 5 ZIE 17,163 14,229 1,470 1,391
- Amounts due to —ERHBRRFIA
subsidiaries - - 10,859 3,368
- Borrowings —BE 1,145,364 679,496 - 40,000
1,190,472 722,063 12,329 44,759
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. £ RiEMEE R AALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Malaysia with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$, EUR, CHF, RMB and US$. No foreign
currency risk has been identified for the financial assets
and financial liabilities denominated in RMB, which is the
functional currencies of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
to which these transactions relate. The Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain
financial instruments including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, derivative financial instruments and
borrowings which are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group
entities, including EUR, CHF, US$ and Japanese Yen
(“JPY”). During both years, the Group did not have foreign
currency hedging policy but management continuously
monitors foreign exchange exposure.

(%&)

i

41.2 SR By

SNERRESRMIAZAAREBELAR
KIR & B A SMNE E = 8 8 K
BRR AKEEEEETE F
BAuh R FREEEE  ABOR
SUBT BT WmIER AR
BERETIIERER - A\RERE
B 5 Pl 2 P Bl A P BB &
Az e  HUAARBIEZ
TREENTRAELEZIERIH
R - NEE 2 INERREEIR
BAREEEREEE NG
(BRI WwLEEM ETKA
ENJEzETERMIA BRERK
ARERBaRIIEZEREE
FEWE 5 R 0R S B At FE M RIR - B
NEHRIBENMEMENRE IT4E
TRTARBE -RMEFEAN-
AEEHEINESRBER - AW
EEESNAEEEINERR
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BisHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing closing
rates at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:

M. cREBEERQAAES
(&)

fim

41.2 SR B (42)

MHNETHEZEREERAEBER
BEMRZERUTERERE
Joo BRI

2015 2014
—2-1f% —I-|mE

Notional Notional

amounts of amounts of

derivative derivative

Financial Financial financial Financial Financial financial
assets liabilities instruments  Net exposure assets liabilities instruments Net exposure

fTESR ik
EHEE SRER IEEE RBRRE SRAE SHER IAEE BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER FET TER TEL FAL FiEL TAL TAL
JPY A 49 - - 49 49 - - 49
EUR B 34 (3,266) 20,538 17,306 385 (8,639) = (8,254)
CHF LA 44 (12,478) - (12,434) 590 (16,448) - (15,858)
RMB ARE 21,697 - - 21,697 21,714 - - 21,714
Us$ eI 212 (2,703) - (2,491) 47,859 (1,252) - 46,607

Sensitivity analysis

As US$ is pegged to HKS$, the Group does not expect
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange rate.
No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is disclosed
as in the opinion of directors of the Company, such
sensitivity analysis does not give additional value in view
of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$ exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period.

HEETH

R RIT BT - Fi - A&
BEHETHETERA IS HAR
EREREH ANARAEER
75 BN RTT S TUE R
R EEBEMN  AEREAXTIE
LERMEENABZERESN
WERRHEIMEE AL ERE
BRSREIN -
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

M. cREBEERQAAES
(&)

il

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 41.2 SR b (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
results for the years and retained profits in regards to a
5% (2014: 5%) appreciation in HK$ against JPY, EUR,
CHF and RMB respectively. The 5% is the rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
best assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

HBEDH (&)

TREEAEERMEFEZFRE
MREHEMEEBITE AE BT
It EZBRARE D BITTES%
(ZZF—M%F:5%) ZHEE 5%
DRAEEEEASEINERRA
MBERBZILLE YREEEY
SRS DE KRB E B 2 EEMET o

Results for the year
and retained profits

TEEEBERRERA
Group
rEME
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
JPY =i 2) 2)
EUR BT (865) 358
CHF T % BB 622 798
RMB AR (1,055) (1,086)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period
has been determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial years and held constant
throughout the year.

AEBRBERREAZ ZINER
% 8RR D AT DA R B R ) 2 S
BEXBRRADLES HERE I
RREMAEHRE2FHIFIEM
BE-
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. $RiERMEE R AALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.2

41.3

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against JPY, EUR, CHF, and
RMB would have the same magnitude on the Group’s
results for the year and retained profits but of opposite
effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to
be representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

As the Company does not have significant exposure
to foreign currency risk, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in foreign currency rates.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the
Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits (Note 27) and borrowings (Note 31). The Group
and the Company have not used any derivative contracts
in order to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
Group and the Company have not formulated a policy to
manage the interest rate risk.

(%&)

41.2

41.3

i

S mbE (&)

MBEDH (&)

BT BE BT I AR A
R (ES% HHAEBRAF
BzHERREENAEFHEEE
HRZEE-

SN TE X B R & [ B A R 28 41
RZBEMEMTR - EEWL
ERAMRE RATRRANEEFR
Az SN R o

3 K 2 3 MR R B AN
B BARFZ MAREERS R
BEATENEEXZDYE -

rE

) 2R @ b

MERBESRIAZ ARER
RenEBRMSNEEE MK
Z g o REE R AR R ZF X E,
2T BRBRTHER (ME27) &
fEE (M FE31) - AR E R AR 7]
WEFERERMITETRAHE T
H = o AR B R AR B E
I ET B IR A R AR 2 BRR
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE_T—

AE=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

41.4

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
and the Company’s results for the year ended 31 March
2015 to a possible change in interest rates of +/-0.5%
(2014: +/-0.5%),
year. The calculations are based on the Group’s and

with effect from the beginning of the

the Company’s financial assets and liabilities held at the

(%&)

41.3

41. cREBREERAAEE

MEmbgE (&)

TREEAAEBRARRHE_T
—HF=ZA=+—HLFEZEE
[ETE2g= i%ﬂi?ﬂz 7 R

+/-0.5% — P4 : +/-0.5% )
Zﬁl,&\f£°* FIEAARERE KRR

RAIRBMERRFE L EREE

end of the reporting period. All other variables are held REERELE FTE MBS
constant. o
Results for the year
and retained profits
TFEEERRKREERR
Group Company
rEE /N
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
-0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
2015 —E—HF (967) 18 (18)
2014 — O F (1,095) (167) 167
Credit risk 41.4 ER

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to its
customers and other counterparties in the ordinary
course of its operation.

EERRESR TR 2 HF I RE
BRESRTAZGRETERE
SAEERZUBERZ AR - &

SEMAXZEERBRIERS
i %%i%ﬁ%iqﬂ?i%ﬁgﬁﬁ
HMBFH2EE-
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41.

AE=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.4 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group trades mainly with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. Further detailed exposure to credit risk of the

Group is disclosed in note 25

All the Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks located in Hong Kong, Malaysia and Mainland
China. None of the financial assets of the Group are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk
within the Group as at 31 March 2015. As at 31 March
2014, the Group’s concentration of credit risk mainly
comes from receivable from a counterparty which
represented about 24% of the Group’s other receivables
as at that date. The Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical locations is mainly in Mainland China and
Hong Kong as at both year-ends.

The Company is not exposed to significant concentration
of risk.

TRIEMEERAAETE

(%&)

41.4 FERM (&)

AEBITEREZREERIKZ
F=ZTETRS -REAKEZK
R ERABAREEAETRS
ZEPHARKBEERERF It
S R B TR R AR B 5% R IR 45
g BAmMAKEZRERRE T2

K- AEBEERBZE —FFE
M EE25H B -
ANEB 2 2 2R 1TE B FRR

BE - BRAZRTEAML T E
RIT-AKEZERMEEHREEB
ERmaEMEERAER-

%*%fﬁizﬂ:+fa~$%
B AEHEAEFEERR R
:?—mifﬂf+—a'$ﬁ@
ZEFEERBREIERAEKR—
ZHFHZHE REBHEAER
H 1 fE W TR IB4924% © M EF
ZEHK AEEEDEMETmIE
FEERBREBMNARERM K
&5

RRBWAREHERNES 2 AR -
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. £ RiEMEENR A ALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group and
the Company will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. The Group and
the Company are exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of trade payables and its financing obligations,
and also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s and the Company’s objective are to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group and the Company manage the liquidity needs
on a consolidated basis by carefully monitoring scheduled
debt servicing payments for long term financial liabilities
as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day
to day business.

Analysed below is the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturities for the non-derivative
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period. When
the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled,
the liability is included on the basis of the earliest date on
which the Group and the Company can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group and the Company are committed to pay.

(%&)

il

41.5 RiE R K

e RN S DS RANYNCTE R
EETHERABEEZARSA
o AEERARBAZGHREN
BNEZFARBERENARR
EREERZRBERR - NEE R
ARARZ BERKREEE k&
AEEREEFNAENKE AR
NEREHEESTE-

AEBRARNFRBBEEERER
HEeRBECHAFERNALEE
X ARBRSRA LML - AR

BEEEEERYPESTHFE

AT AARERARRFEITE
ERMABRBREHRZHGBED
AMBER-WEBERARREER
RENER  MEHAERASKE
RARARIAREKRERER &R
BHMtE -HEREBD HEN
ABMERBOEEARNKERA
RAEAEGENRZ X FHIEA -
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. e REREER A REFE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)
41.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 41.5 RE R (£)
The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of ZoMheRmaE o RMBRS
the financial liabilities. mERKIE-
Group AEME
Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above

BRRME  IR-FH
FHEE HERERE REREE -FfHE

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 31 March 2015 R-E-1F
=A=+-AH
Non-derivative financial ETESEBMTIA:
instruments:
- Trade payables -ENBSHHE 24,065 24,065 24,065 =
~ Accrued charges and —ErERAK
other payables =8 ANE S 17,163 17,163 16,768 395
- Borrowings —fBE 1,145,364 1,164,096 1,164,096 =
1,186,592 1,205,324 1,204,929 395
At 31 March 2014 RZT— M F
=A=+—H
Non-derivative financial FTESRMTE:
instruments:
- Trade payables -ENESRIE 28,338 28,338 28,338 =
- Accrued charges and B EAR
other payables H A e FUE 14,229 14,229 13,889 340
- Borrowings — &8 679,496 693,235 693,235 =
722,063 735,802 735,462 340
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—_T—RAF=—A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. €¢iEREEBER AREE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
41.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 41.5 REN R (&)
Company ¥
Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above

BHRXREER  OR-F9F
FHEE HEREAE REREE -FfHt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T T
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1F
=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial FTESBMIA:
instruments:
- Accrued charges and B EAR
other payables H o & 1 FE 1,470 1,470 1,470 =
- Amounts due to — B A RRE
subsidiaries 10,859 10,859 10,859 -
12,329 12,329 12,329 —
Financial guarantees issued: BEHMBER:
- Guarantees given to —-BRHBRRERZ
banks in connection EERET
with facilities granted to B2 ER
subsidiaries (note 39) (FF#E39) - 20,969 20,969 =
At 31 March 2014 KT —M4F
=A=+—-H
Non-derivative financial FITESRMIA:
instruments:
- Accrued charges and —EEHERR
other payables Hofth 1 5/ 0E 1,391 1,391 1,391 =
— Amounts due to —ERHBARFE
subsidiaries 3,368 3,368 3,368 =
- Borrowings —fEE 40,000 40,757 40,757 -
44,759 45,516 45,516 =
Financial guarantees issued: BREHIBER:
- Guarantees given to —HHNBARERZ
banks in connection EEMRTT
with facilities granted to B2 ER
subsidiaries (note 39) (P7E39) - 64,224 64,224 =
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. £ RiERMEEN AAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

41.6 R BRABRER ZAAE

41.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position

The fair values of rental deposits paid to a related party,
trade and other receivables, balances with related parties
and subsidiaries, pledged deposits, cash at banks and
in hand, trade payables, accrued charges and other
payables, borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of other payables have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using the
rates currently available for instruments on similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

oF |

EREN—BHEEATHERSE
FEWE 5 38 K K b FE Y RIE - BE
BALRMBRAR &8 CEM
FF ROERTFERS BNES
R BB A R H MR 3R

& & A B e A5 BN BB & Bl SRR B A2
HE ZEITAZAAERAK
[EfentCEEE R

HitENRBZRABIEBE

R&R - R R R R &R F AL
X THEZBATH R A RAKR
TRERBFS

ARRETELEE

2B AR BEREE MR
%ﬁ%Zéﬂﬁ?&%ﬁZ
ARAEIEBRE - RAEIERE
ﬁ%ﬁgiﬂéé&ﬁﬁZﬁﬁ
BERERZERBAEZELA

FE SREeREENBESR
:1!%&}”1‘J cBERAAEDBRBIM
S @

S

S
=

- BB EEWBHRAER
BERBEZHRE CREA

B):

— WA= BEE(MERK)K
M (ERITES) TER
BEXBBZBWAB T8
BRA—EEANZRE: &

— A= UENUABERTS
BEAREEZEELARR
ABE(TABRBAE) -
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BsHmRME (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—AFE=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41.
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position (Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

Valuation for the financial instruments, including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are
categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, is
prepared at the end of each reporting period, and is
reviewed and approved by the directors. The financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

TRIEMEERQAAETE

41.6 R BRRBRBERZANE

FtE (&)

CREEXRBEMBEAREDE
MANERAHRAEFENE B
EAZRERFN@AESER

SRMIE (BEIEAARNENE
BRI =2 AR EREBREIE
ZERMEE)HERSHRE KRR
B WHBEBSEHN R E RS
MBERABRBZARBHEZS
BEERBEEARESERA
DEET

Group AEME
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FRl= FAEI= &5t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
; FBT FHBT FAET
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZZE—-1F
=A=t+-—H
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial TEeMTA
instruments (Note (a)) (K3E@)) 3,880 = 3,880
As at 31 March 2014 RZE—MF
=B=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair BRARERBRER
value through profit SR S B E
or loss (Note (b)) (BI5E(0)) - 549 549
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢ RiEMEER A AEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

There have been no significant transfers between Levels
1 and 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
reporting period.

Notes:
(@) Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts
with a creditworthy bank in Hong Kong. These foreign
currency forward contracts are measured using valuation
techniques similar to a forward pricing model, with the
resulting value discounted back to present value. The
models incorporate various market observable inputs
including the credit quality of counterparties, and foreign
exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts of
these foreign currency forward contracts are the same as
their fair values. The derivatives entered into by the Group
are included in Level 2.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair values of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group is determined by using
market based approach by reference to recent sales price
of other assets with similar nature which completed in
arm’s length transactions. The significant unobservable
input is reference to selling prices of comparable products
in the market. The financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are included in Level 3 and consist of wine
futures. The higher the sales price, the higher the fair
value.

(%&)

41.6 R BRABREIZANE
FtE (&)

RIE A - &R — Kk - ZFE1 &
BREENER =N EEARE
o

B :
(a) fTESBMTA

REBEBRFE —REERIEF 2R
TRIAIMNERIE K - X FINE
EHE KT R BE T R
Bz BERME 8 - LA
SEEMAERE 2RERE
ZHEMBABRGAER BRFY
FH2ER INEREREDRE
K- ZEIEERRN ZHRES

SN ZTET A AR = -

(b) BAABEBRBHERIIRZEME
B

FEBAFRA R ERBERRT
R EMEEZRAETERT
BEREL BREATRPTK
ZROUEE s EtEENEE
BREE -ERTABEBAET
S2EMGLAEUBRERZE
EB-BmAnERBRERIIKZS
BMEEFALRN= SEHE-
EEMS AnEES-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—RAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. $RiEMEER A AEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#%&)
41.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the 41.6 R BERRBRERZAAE
statement of financial position (Continued) TR (&)
Notes: (Continued) MicE: (&)
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (b) BRAARBEREZRIEFEzEME
(Continued) E(#)
The movements in the balance of these Level 3 fair value BR=Z AR BETELEHEZE W
measurements are as follows: T
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
At beginning of the year F4 549 524
Exercise of wine futures TEEE (554) a
Fair value gains credited to FFABRRZ AR ENR
profit or loss 5 25
At end of the year FIR - 549
The Company does not expose to the risk on fair value ARBEAREH AR EERR
measurement.
p =
42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 42. EXERE
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is AEBEEAER T EZEHERRELLE
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy R 2 ERATRREE B
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise N HEERRERREBRRAL:
shareholders value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBBELEER A ELLERELERN
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. HEBWHEER AR BT ARE
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may REE NEENERAERRKRRIKS
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to e mREFEEEARKBEITHRMD -
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in MRAFE AEBZBE BRKEF

the objectives, policies or processes during the year. N3 =0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—_T—RAF=_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continueq) 42. EXERE (#)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is AEBRAETBELX (AEBHARE
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated as PRUAE RREE) IR B AR BT RERTY
borrowings, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial EREEFE  UEHREE BRI RE
position. Total capital is calculated as total equity, as shown NeBRBREDIRERBETE IR
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group REREMBEARFERAN - AEB 2 BIZ
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. EEEREGELEERE —(ESEKE
o

2015 2014
—E-IfF —ET-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FH T

Total debt B AR
Borrowings BE 1,145,364 679,496
Total capital BEXRBE 1,130,345 1,591,449
Total debt to capital ratio REBHERLR 101.3% 42.7%
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Financial Summary

RESULTS E
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—E-—% ZE-Zf% CT-Z=f —E-mE “E-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THL THT THT THT T
Revenue Wizs 3,286,688 4,427,423 3,015,555 3,161,848 2,605,701
Profit for the year attributable AREHEAANES
to owners of the Company KEERT 183,677 214,188 66,304 18,951 (455,685)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F-——% CZT-ZFf —E—=F —E-mE —E-IfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TEL TEL TEL FEL T
Total assets BEE 1,703,923 1,922,865 2,373,296 2,433,612 2,410,514
Total liabilities BafE (435,472) (465,891) (727,762) (842,163)  (1,280,169)
1,268,451 1,456,974 1,645,534 1,591,449 1,130,345
Equity attributable to owners ARAEEAEGER
of the Company 1,263,183 1,452,227 1,605,501 1,573,571 1,112,564
Non-controlling interests iR 5,268 4,747 40,033 17,878 17,781
1,268,451 1,456,974 1,645,534 1,591,449 1,130,345

188

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 BAER2 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3§







	Cover
	Content
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Biographies of Directors and Managements
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Back Cover

